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The Saskatoon Tribal Council improves the quality of life of First Nations people living on and
off-reserve through mutually beneficial partnerships with community organizations and
industry.

Opportunities for improved living are accessed through health, safety, economic development
and education programs and services, and community financial investments. Acting as a
representative body for seven First Nations, STC employs more than 600 people throughout
various locations.

SAULTEAUX
NATION

More information on the Tribal Council is available at:
www.sktc.sk.ca
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MESSAGE FROM TRIBAL
CHIEF MARK ARCAND

It is with great pride that we reflect on another year of growth, progress, and impact across the
Saskatoon Tribal Council’s departments and programs.

Our annual report is a chance to honour how far we’ve come and to recognize the work that still lies
ahead. We are dedicated to continuing our work with business, community, and government partners to
bridge historical gaps and improve quality of life in all the communities we serve.

STC's work is guided by the teachings of the Medicine
Wheel, which embody a holistic focus on mind, body,
heart, and spirit. Our traditional teachings emphasize
the connection between all of us; that’s why you'll
find references throughout this report to the
‘relatives’ served by STC programs; because we treat
the people we serve as valued family members.

This approach has led to thousands of positive
outcomes this year, including over 3,500 relatives
offered mental health support by our Integrated
Wellness unit, and 276 relatives connected to careers
with help from STC Employment Training and Services.

99

“Our traditional teachings emphasize
the connection between all of us;
that's why you'll find references
throughout this report to the
‘relatives’ served by STC programs;
because we treat the people we serve
as valued family members.”

Traditional values of community and fairness shape
the work at our Emergency Wellness Centre, where
staff cared for over 2,500 relatives in need of a safe
place to stay.

While First Nations traditions will always remain
our foundation at STC, we know the future of our
people depends on the next generation. This year,
our Education team supported professional
development for school staff in STC member
communities, and expanded Saskatoon’s Pathways
to Education program to serve 350 students.

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

TRIBAL CHIEF MARK ARCAND

Saskatoon Tribal Council

We continued building up young people at White
Buffalo Youth Lodge, offering year-round fitness,
recreation, and Youth Council programming
focused on leadership, life skills, and cultural
teachings.

Our Well-Being Services team also worked tirelessly
for children and families, including over 1,000
children who received specialized support through
Jordan’s Principle in STC member communities.

STC's Justice Department walked alongside
relatives seeking a new path with programs like
Tkweskicik iskwéwak, helping women break the
cycle of incarceration and start new chapters.

Our programs reflect the values of mutual support
and shared prosperity enshrined in Treaty 6.

2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



Perhaps no moment better captured the spirit of
“Tradition Guiding Our Progress” than our second
annual Every Child Matters Pow Wow. It was
profoundly moving to see thousands of people at
SaskTel Centre in orange shirts for the National Day
for Truth and Reconciliation.

This year also brought deep sorrow with the passing
of our beloved friend and mentor, Senator George
PeeAce. His lifetime of work on behalf of First Nations
people helped shape STC and we are forever thankful
for the example he set for all of us.

As | look back on all we have achieved together this — / ff | |

year, I'm honoured to serve as STC Tribal Chief and Tribal Chief Mark Arcand (right) and Assembly of First Nations National
! i . Chief Cindy Woodhouse (centre) visit the STC Emergency Wellness Centre.

grateful for the continued support of our Chiefs,

Councillors, and Elders in ensuring STC reflects the

needs of our member communities.

To our STC staff: thank you for your heart and
commitment. To our business, community, and
government partners: thank you for standing with us.
Together, we are honouring our past and building a ; 1k
stronger future for all. il B o

o Grépeecinn

With gratitude,

Tribal Chief Mark Arcand Tribal Chief Mark Arcand receives a donation for the STC Emergency
Wellness Centre from Saskatoon and Area United Way CEO Sheri Benson.

HORELESS ...,
CatekmEss] e

Tribal Chief Mark Arcand and members of the community take part in a walk in support of the STC Emergency Wellness Centre on March 14, 2024.
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EVERY CHILD MATTERS POW WOW

The 2" Annual Every Child Matters Pow Wow In Honour of Reconciliation was a highlight for all of STC this
year. Taking place over the weekend of Sept. 30 — Oct. 1, 2023, this year’s event at SaskTel Centre was held to
coincide with Canada’s National Day for Truth and Reconciliation.

This opportunity to gather to celebrate culture and honour residential school Survivors could not have
happened without support from the community. We are thankful for the contributions of our incredible
sponsors for making our Pow Wow possible!

l)AK HJNLES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

Nutrien SAS IAQATOON

Feeding the Future™ M E D GROUP

I
SASKATCHEWAN
REALTORS®
Saskatoon ASSOCIATION
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I STC SUCCESS STORIES

The Saskatoon Tribal Council is proud to support thousands of relatives each year from all
backgrounds and walks of life with programs rooted in First Nations tradition and culture.

Guided by the teachings of our Elders and Knowledge-Keepers, we offer support that honours
identity, restores dignity, and builds pathways to healing and self-sufficiency. These are just a few
of the successes we’ve been part of this year. Find more details, and many more success stories on
the STC website at www.sktc.sk.ca!

DOUG’S STORY: EWC OFFERS PATH TO EDUCATION, HEALING, AND BELONGING

Doug arrived at the Saskatoon Tribal Council’s
Emergency Wellness Centre in October 2023, and
it's where he proudly earned his GED.

“They helped me get this,” he said, beaming as he
held up his certificate. He credited the EWC's
programming, and supportive staff for helping him
rebuild his life.

Doug said the EWC offers more than shelter—it
offers safety, community, and hope. “Everyone is
welcome here, Indigenous and non-Indigenous,”
he said. “As First Nations people, we take others
under our wing. That's what we do.” With his GED
goal accomplished, Doug is looking forward to

tackling more challenges with help from STC, as he -
builds a future full of promise. Doug earned his GED while living at the Emergency Wellness Centre.

ROMA AND RYAN: A JOURNEY FROM SURVIVAL TO SERVICE

After years of addiction and homelessness, Roma
found a lifeline at STC's Sawéyihtotan Transitional
Home. “If it wasn't for Sawéyihtotan, | would be
dead,” she said.

Supported by cultural programming, counselling,
and a sense of community, she embraced sobriety
and began rebuilding her life. Her partner, Ryan,
on his own recovery journey, participated with her
in sharing circles and meetings.

Together, they overcame their struggles and now
give back as peer support workers. Ryan is also a
peacekeeper at Kotawan. Their story is a powerful
testament to the impact of Sawéyihtotan—a place
Roma and Ryan found healing through Sawéyihtotan and each other. of healing, growth, and second chances.
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IN MEMORIAM:

SENATOR GEORGE PEEACE

We honour the life and legacy of our dear friend and mentor, Senator George PeeAce, who passed

away on November 13, 2023.

George served as an STC Senator for 23 years after being appointed in 2000. His wisdom and
experience were invaluable to STC's Chiefs at Governance House, and at leadership tables across
the organization. STC would not be what it is today without his steady presence and guidance.

Beyond his leadership, George is fondly remembered
for his kindness, sense of humour, and dedication to
service. He consistently reminded us that STC's first
responsibility is to work on behalf of the people of
our member communities.

A Residential and Day School Survivor from Yellow
Quill First Nation, George became a band Councillor
in 1973, and then Chief of Yellow Quill in 1983. He
represented the Saskatoon District and served as FSIN
Vice-Chief from 1988 to 1991.

Among his many accomplishments, George was a key
negotiator of the 1992 Treaty Land Entitlement
Framework Agreement, helping 25 First Nations settle
long-standing claims—an achievement that continues
to benefit First Nations communities throughout
Saskatchewan to this day.

George shared his passion for pow wow culture and
rodeo as a member of the Northern Eagle drum
group, and as a founder of the Saskatchewan Indian
Rodeo Circuit. He was also well-known for his
enthusiasm and dedication to golf.

Alongside his responsibilities and family
commitments, George found time to serve on the
boards of several organizations advancing Indigenous
priorities, including the Saskatchewan Indian Institute
of Technology, Saskatchewan Indian Training
Assessment Group, and Indigenous Gaming
Regulators.

We thank Senator George PeeAce for his lifetime of
leadership and service. His legacy lives on through the
Saskatoon Tribal Council, Yellow Quill First Nation,
and Indigenous communities across the province. We
are forever grateful for his contributions.

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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CRESS HOUSING
CORPORATION

We are proud of the growth and improvements achieved at Cress Housing Corporation during the

2023/24 fiscal year.

Throughout the year, we upheld our mission of providing safe, affordable, and culturally
appropriate social housing services for First Nations people, while focusing on key areas of
improving operations, addressing historical non-urgent work orders, and expanding our team to

better support our tenants.

GEOFFREY PETERS

Director - Cress Housing Corporation
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“Throughout the year, we upheld
our mission of providing safe,
affordable, and culturally
appropriate social housing
services for First Nations people.”

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

TENANT RELATIONS

We strengthened our Tenant Relations department by
significantly increasing staffing levels over the fiscal
year.

This enhanced capacity plays a vital role not only in
revenue generation but, more importantly, in
enabling us to provide more comprehensive and
effective support to tenants.

With a renewed focus on proactive communication
and timely referrals to appropriate support services,
we have seen a noticeable improvement in tenant
relationships with our staff, fostering a stronger sense
of trust and cooperation.

SUSTAINED STABILITY

We maintained ownership and operation of our
diverse portfolio of over 400 rental units, ensuring a
stable housing environment for First Nations families
in Saskatoon.

These units include a mix of apartments, single
detached homes, condos, duplexes, and fourplexes,
with some units set aside specifically for seniors.

Our portfolio includes a combination of market-rate
rentals and units with rents subsidized by our
partners at the Canada Mortgage and Housing
Corporation.

2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IMPROVES QUALITY, PROTECTS AFFORDABILITY

We kept the focus on capital improvements to
maintain and enhance the quality of our housing
stock, ensuring long-term sustainability for our
tenants.

This included completing significant upgrades to our
workshop, improving productivity and staff safety.

Our team also prepared 125 units for move-in,
ensuring readiness and suitability for new tenants;
this includes work completed by our Maintenance
Technicians, with vendor support primarily

coordinated through the Supervisory and
Management team.

Proactive maintenance and capital upgrades help us
provide the best possible environment for our
tenants, and help Cress be good neighbours in the
communities where we work, while maintaining
affordability for tenants.

Our Maintenance team handled over 2,400 service

requests and repairs this year, ranging from critical,
emergency situations to routine upkeep and after-
hours calls.

COMPLETED MAINTENANCE REQUESTS, BY PRIORITY LEVEL - 2023/24:

Critical
High

Medium 543

Low

PLANNING FOR THE FUTURE

Looking ahead, we will focus on expanding housing
capacity and stabilizing our market portfolio through
capital improvements, while exploring funding for
financial feasibility and asset renewal.

We will continue supporting STC's Kotawan
transitional housing for families, and the Tkwéskicik
iskwéwak program, which serves women
reintegrating following incarceration.

We thank our staff, tenants, and community partners,
as we look forward to continuing our work in the
year ahead to ensure safe, stable housing for those in
need.

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL 9
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I EDUCATION

STC's Education department built on successful programs this year, supporting students from
preschool to high school in member communities and in Saskatoon.

We also provided professional development opportunities for hundreds of educators and school
staff through community visits, webinars, and events like our School Opening Institute. We thank
our community and government partners, and all the educators and staff we worked with this
year for their ongoing dedication to student success.

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

STC's Superintendent of Schools is the Ministry of
Education’s Approved Supervisor supporting
administrators and teachers across six schools in
member communities.

The superintendent offered professional
development for educators in six schools in STC
member communities this year, focusing on
instructional leadership, and language and land-
based learning.

A total of 60 teacher evaluations were completed
across Kinistin, Muskeg Lake, Mistawasis, and One

CANDICE DWERNYCHUK Arrow. An administra_tive evalyation \{ve?s completed
_ _ for Muskeg Lake, while a partial administrative
Director of Education evaluation was completed for One Arrow.

EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT URBAN ABORIGINAL HEAD START
PRESCHOOL

STC's Early Childhood Development program supports
seven Childcare Centres and six Aboriginal Head Start  Urban AHS serves up to 25 students, with

Programs in member communities. Our staff programming including Cree language, social skill
attended meetings in member communities, assisted  development, and support from specialized services
with staff recruitment, and helped develop a parent including speech-language pathologist and
handbook template. occupational therapist consultations.

Nine licensing inspections were completed and Student families are offered support, including
educators were offered professional development in holiday food hampers and referrals to other supports
child-centred learning and assessing children’s and services.

development.

Landscaping was completed at the facility in summer

STC staff supported member community Childcare 2023, and a new transit van for transporting students
Centres and Aboriginal Head Start on Reserve was purchased in March 2024.

(AHSOR) programs in applying for federal funds for
building renovations.
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LITERACY SPECIALIST

STC Education’s literacy specialist offered professional
development for educators prior to the start of the
2023/24 school year at STC's School Opening Institute.
Further professional development opportunities were
offered during the school year through Professional
Learning Communities, in-school assistance, and
schoolwide presentations.

Activities included ongoing research of effective
learning models, supporting assessment-based
instruction and effective classroom practices, and
expanding literacy opportunities through the use of
land-based teachings.

PATHWAYS TO EDUCATION

The Pathways to Education after-school tutoring and
mentoring program grew to 350 students (Grades 9-
12), including 58 graduates. This marks continued
recovery after a decline in enroliment due to the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Pathways students participated in First Nations
ceremonies, employment readiness, and fitness
initiatives. We distributed school supplies and
September bus passes to 320 students in August 2024.

Students this year had an opportunity to attend the
#CanadaWeWant Youth Conference in Toronto,
where they collaborated on action plans addressing
youth issues and presented them to decision-makers
in government and youth organizations.

PATHWAYS ENROLLMENT, 2018/19 — 2023/24:

350
322
225
120
90

2018/19  2019/20  2020/21 2021/22  2022/23 2023/24

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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NUMERACY CONSULTANT

STC Education’s numeracy consultant worked to
enhance programming and assessment in member
Nation schools.

Professional development was offered for education
staff from member communities in alignment with
the goals set out in each member community’s
strategic plan.

This year's focus areas included math skills
development, assessment-informed instruction, and
the inclusion of Indigenous Ways of Knowing
alongside the provincial curriculum.

YOUTH SPORTS, CULTURE AND
RECREATION

STC Education’s Youth, Sports, Culture and Recreation
(YSCR) staff achieved a 95% success rate on grant
applications this year, from funders like Kidsport, the
Federation of Sovereign Indigenous Nations,
Saskatchewan Lotteries, and Jump Start.

YSCR organized a grant-writing workshop this year
for community coordinators and Phys. Ed. Teachers,
and set up coaching and officiating clinics in member
communities, supporting the goal of increasing
access to youth sports and recreation.

YSCR also supported Grassroots grants helping
communities develop sports programming and
provide youth with employment skills.

URBAN EARLY LEARNING CENTRE

STC's Urban Early Learning Centre provides 70
licensed childcare spaces.

This year brought continued investments in our staff,
and our facility.

Early childhood educators at the Centre participated
in professional development focused on children’s
development, and First Aid training.

Significant facility upgrades were also completed,
with all seven classrooms repainted and redesigned
to create bright, engaging spaces for learning, while
plumbing improvements ensured the building
remains safe and functional for years to come.

2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



EMPLOYMENT AND
TRAINING SERVICES

It was a busy time for STC Employment and Training Services (ETS) in 2023/24 across our Labour
Force Development, Urban Navigator and Pre-Employment Support programs.

We are thankful for the commitment our staff have consistently shown to helping our relatives
achieve their career and education goals, and we are grateful for the business, community and
government partners who help facilitate our work both in the Saskatoon urban area, and in our
STC member communities.

EMPLOYMENT RESULTS

Through our partnerships with employers and our
network of community contacts, ETS staff successfully
helped 276 individuals secure jobs and enter the
workforce. Of these, 83 (30%) were women,
reflecting ongoing efforts to encourage labour force
participation across all demographics.

ETS hosted and partnered with several training
programs this year, helping many of our relatives
who lacked employability skills and work experience.

We have been encouraged this year by the number
of relatives who moved directly into employment
after participating in our training programming, and
we will continue strengthening our employment
partnerships moving forward.

EMPLOYMENT SECTORS FOR RELATIVES ASSISTED
BY ETS: 2023/24

2 7 6 Total relatives employed
163 | i
40 Camp services

7 3 Other sectors: security, office
positions, care homes, schools, etc.

ETS staff conduct a resume-writing workshop and information session at
the Saskatoon Correctional Centre Urban Camp.

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL 12 2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



LABOUR FORCE DEVELOPMENT

We continued seeing strong demand for our Labour
Force Development services, with 1556 relatives
reaching out to us for support over the course of
the year.

This included just over 250 individual sponsorship
requests for Certificate & Diploma-level courses, of
which we were able to fund 85 relatives.

We were also able to partner with companies to
provide 30 employment positions subsidized
through our funding.

Learning for success: Relatives attend an ETS information session and
resume workshop on the Muskeg Lake Cree Nation.

PRE-EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT PRE-EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT SERVICES,
The Pre-Employment Support program is an on- NUMBER OF RELATIVES PER COMMUNITY:

reserve income-support program funded by

Indigenous Services Canada (ISQ). Employment
23 2 3

The program operates in STC member communities Kinistin
with the goal of assisting relatives in becoming self-
sufficient, and ultimately moving away from Mistawasis 52 2 18
dependence on income assistance.

Muskeg Lake 9 0 4
We experienced high demand for Pre-Employment Muskoday 48 2 12
Support services over the course of the fiscal year,
reaching our funded maximum of 250 relatives, and One Arrow 60 1 14
serving an additional 72 unfunded relatives who
accessed the program in our STC member Whitecap 29 1 0
communities, for a total caseload of 322.

Yellow Quill 22 2 8

MICT URBAN NAVIGATOR PROGRAM URBAN NAVIGATOR PROGRAM RESULTS:

Employed

Seeking
Education

The Urban Navigator Program, funded by the
Ministry of Immigration and Career Training, supports
Saskatoon residents in building entry-level
employment skills and addressing labour force
demand.

Currently

The program served relatives at STC's Emergency working with

Wellness Centre, Tkwéskicik iskwéwak, Kotawan 1,
and the Saskatoon Correctional Centre’s Urban Camp.
Workshops were also held at White Buffalo Youth
Lodge throughout the year on digital literacy,
financial literacy, resume-writing and job interview
prep, and assistance securing ID documents.

Relocated

Job Ready

Total: 79 relatives
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HOUSING AND
TECHNICAL SERVICES

Housing and Technical Services supports STC member communities with advice on housing,
infrastructure, water treatment, and maintenance. We offer inspections, inventory management,
mapping, planning, asset reporting, and training for facility operators and staff.

We are committed to helping our member communities achieve self-reliance in housing,
infrastructure, and maintenance. We sincerely appreciate the dedication of our member
communities’ housing and public works staff, and thank them for all their hard work this year.

ENGINEERING AND CAPITAL PLANNING

A community planning update was completed this
year for Kinistin Saulteaux Nation as part of our
commitment to complete updates for all member
communities on a five-year rotational basis. At the
time of writing, a community plan was near
completion for One Arrow First Nation.

Asset condition reports (ACRs) are completed for
each community on a three-year rotational basis.
These reports assess the condition of all band assets
receiving federal Capital Asset Inventory System
funding.

ACRs were completed this year for Kinistin and

RILEY BEAR - .
Yellow Quill First Nation.

Director of Housing and Technical Services

CAPITAL PROJECTS

Housing and Technical Services offered advisory
,’ services this year on member communities’ major
capital projects, and Band projects including:

e Muskoday Low Pressure Water Upgrade, Solid

We are committed to helping Waste Transfer Station Feasibility Study and

our member communities achieve Water Plant Upgrade.

self-reliance in housing, « Mistawasis Gasification, School Boiler

infrastructure, and maintenance.” Replacement, Well Decommissioning, Lift Station
Replacement and Water Treatment Plant
Upgrade.

e Muskeg Lake Well Replacement.

¢ Kinistin Health Center Re-roofing, School Boiler
Replacement, School Re-roofing, and Water Plant
Upgrade

e One Arrow Flood Preparation.
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WATER, WASTEWATER, AND FACILITY
MAINTENANCE

STC Water Treatment and Facility Maintenance
Advisors plan, organize, and deliver mentoring,
training, and hands-on assistance under the Circuit
Rider Training Program for First Nations water and
wastewater systems and school mechanical systems.

We also organize workshops to help water plant
operators acquire Continuing Education Units (CEUs)
needed to maintain their certification: this year’s two-
day training course focused on Water Main Swabbing
and Confined Space Entry. Each operator received 0.6
CEUs.

HOUSING

STC maintains a housing inventory updated every
three years. The Housing Advisor provides assistance
and advice on housing issues for STC member
communities.

A housing database is kept for each member Nation,
including: number of units, types of water and sewer
service, renovated units, new units, units lost to fire
or destruction, and an assessment of housing
adequacy or need for renovation or replacement.

This year, cyclical inspections were completed for
Yellow Quill.

Housing and Technical Services assists housing development in member
communities, such as this home built by Whitecap Dakota Nation.

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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A new home build by Muskeg Lake Cree Nation was completed with assistance from Housing and Technical Services staff.

A new home built this year by Mistawasis Néhiyawak, with assistance
provided by the STC Housing and Technical Services team.

Ve e
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I JUSTICE

STC's Justice department offers culturally sensitive programming, interventions, advocacy and
court navigation for youth, adults and their families. We deliver wraparound support using a
restorative justice approach, and an Indigenized case-management process.

The goal of Justice programming is to improve the quality of life of our relatives while restoring
individual, family and community relationships. We achieve this by working in collaboration with

our government and community partners.

CRYSTAL LAPLANTE
Director of Justice
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“The goal of Justice programming
is to improve the quality of life of
our relatives while restoring
individual, family and community
relationships.”

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMING

Justice partnered with the Saskatoon Police Service to
deliver educational programming for adults and
youth in 2023/24, including:

o Theft Reduction and Prevention (TRAP): A two-
hour session offered to relatives who have
committed shoplifting.

e The Drug Awareness Program (DAP): For low-risk
individuals referred by authorities after a drug
possession charge, DAP uses a harm-reduction
approach to teach participants about drugs, and
their effects on the brain and body.

¢ Regulating Emotions: An 8-week program that
helps participants manage emotions, reduce
violence risk, and develop skills for giving and
receiving support and feedback.

INDIGENOUS COURT WORKER
PROGRAM

STC's Indigenous Court Workers met with all newly
arrested individuals brought to Saskatoon provincial
court, serving 1,677 relatives in 2023/24. This makes
Saskatoon the busiest court point in the province for
this type of program.

1,677 |

Court workers’ duties include explaining the court
process to the accused, along with their charges.
General information is also provided on legal rights
and responsibilities.

Contacts with
relatives.

2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT
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The STC Leadership and RCMP Forum was held March 11, 2024 at the Dakota Dunes Resort, providing a full day of open discussion and

SRR L

presentations involving STC leaders, RCMP, government funding agencies, community members and Elders.

IKWESKICIK ISKWEWAK

This year marked the second year of operations for
the Tkweéskicik iskwéwak transitional housing
program for women with a history of incarceration
for low-level, non-violent offences.

Working in partnership with the provincial Ministries
of Health, and Integrated Justice Services, Tkwéskicik
iskwéwak is an Indigenous-designed and developed
program offering up to 18 months of intensive
wraparound supports with a strong focus on
addressing female-specific risk factors.

As of March 31, 2024, there were 30 relatives active
in the program, with 126 completed intakes, four
awaiting intake, 54 relatives accepted, and 19
relatives who completed or exited the program.

TIKWESKICIK ISKWEWAK MENTAL HEALTH &
ADDICTIONS SUPPORT (MAR. 31, 2024):

30
11

6 Receiving lkwéskicik iskwéwak mental
health support

Total relatives active in the program

Receiving Tkwéskicik iskwéwak
addictions support

4 Referred to Saskatchewan Health
Authority addictions programming

2 Referred to Saskatchewan Health
Authority mental health programming

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

URBAN JUSTICE PROGRAM

The Urban Justice program includes Alternative
Measures/Extrajudicial Sanctions (EJS) programs for
adults and youth charged with offences meeting
eligibility criteria.

These programs seek to divert offenders from the
criminal justice system, while offering them the
opportunity to take responsibility for their actions
and make reparation to victims and the community.

We saw ongoing need for Indigenous-led Justice
programming in 2023/24. A majority of the 311
relatives we served this year were Indigenous,
including 153 First Nations (status), 70 self-identified
Indigenous (non-status), and 38 Métis. The remaining
50 relatives were non-Indigenous, or did not disclose.

ALTERNATIVE MEASURES/EJS DEMOGRAPHICS:

Non-First
Nation

=
o
w
-+
Q
=
<
w

Métis

Status First
Nation

Not Disclosed

Total: 311 relatives

2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



URBAN INTEGRATED
SERVICES

STC's Urban Integrated Services provided critical support through status-blind programming in our
community, while continuing to work specifically to address issues disproportionately affecting
our Indigenous relatives.

Through a network of programs, partnerships, and culturally grounded services, Urban Integrated
Services worked to address homelessness, health disparities, and social challenges, with a focus on
housing, health, family services, and harm reduction.

SAWEYIHTOTAN

The Sawéyihtotan program addresses homelessness
and housing with a holistic approach, offering a
continuum of care that supports the transition to
independent housing. This includes Sawéyihtotan
Mobile Services, which provides street outreach and
support, and short-term transitional housing at the
Sawéyihtotan Transitional Home. The Kotawan
facility offers supportive family housing.

Home Based Outreach provides support to ensure
relatives who have secured long-term housing are
able to remain housed. This year, the Home Based
HR % Outreach team had 535 interactions with relatives
LISA MUNROE impacted by homelessness, and 115 interactions with
relatives involving food security.

Director of Urban Integrated Services

Saweéyihtotan Homelessness Outreach has recorded
an increasing number of interactions in recent years,
reaching 7,891 in 2023/24, reflecting a growing crisis
of homelessness in Saskatoon.

STC HEALTH CENTRE

The STC Health Centre offered accessible, culturally
based health programs including addictions
counselling, nursing, social WOFk, mental health, SAWEY'HTOTAN HOMELESSNESS OUTREACH
Elder and peer support. We served 17,460 unique TOTAL INTERACTIONS, 2020/21 TO 2023/24:
relatives with 71,172 service visits.

7,891
Supports included access to health care services, HIV
case management, housing and shelter, income
assistance, food security, advocacy, and testing,
treatment and follow-up for sexually transmitted and
bloodborne infections.

The harm reduction program distributed 916,340
needles, with 691,244 returned, or a 75.44%

exchange rate. The program also gave out 73,342
meth pipes, 12,478 crack pipes, and 15,441 condoms. 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
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programs and services offered by government and community partners.

EMERGENCY WELLNESS CENTRE

The Emergency Wellness Centre (EWC) was open 24
hours a day, seven days a week this year, offering 106
emergency shelter beds for relatives experiencing
homelessness.

Relatives at the EWC had opportunities to access STC
programming including Employment and Training
Services, Jordan'’s Principle Navigators and Elder
supports. We are also grateful for community and
provincial partners who offered services including a
Mobile Income Assistance Worker, paramedic visits
and mental health and addictions nurse practitioners.
We saw high demand for EWC services in 2023/24,
with just over 2,500 intakes, and 361 relatives turned
away due to the facility being at capacity.

EWC INTAKES AND HOUSING DATA - 2023/24:

2,501
2,048
315
37
153
361

Intakes

Discharges (housed, referred, returned to
First Nation, or removed due to behaviour)

Individuals arriving as part of
families.

Families connected with housing

Individuals connected with housing

People turned away due to facility being
at capacity

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

The Saskatoon Tribal Council’s Emergency Wellness Centre offers 106 emergency shelter beds and access to STC programs and supports, along with

19

EMERGENCY HOMES

STC's emergency homes provided emergency
residential services and supports for children placed in
the care of the Ministry of Social Services.

Staff cared for 100 children this year across seven
facilities. Our Massey, Melrose, Priel, Cartier,
Pewasayaw, and Children’s Home facilities served
children aged 0-11, while Safe House was designed
for youth aged 12-15.

Of the children in our care, 16 stayed 0-30 days, 27
stayed 31 days to six months, and 57 stayed over six
months. Over 60% of the children who stayed in our
Emergency Homes were from Indigenous
backgrounds, highlighting the ongoing need for
culturally appropriate facilities.

URBAN FAMILY SERVICES

STC Urban Family Services saw strong uptake in
2023/24, with 2,198 intakes across its core programs.

KidsFirst provided in-home support promoting
health and development for off-reserve families
with children under three.

Providers of Aboriginal Lifestyle Supports worked
with families needing protection or intervention
under the Child and Family Services Act.

Creative Healing for Urban Members offered
culturally grounded wellness programs to
strengthen parenting skills and support healing.
Children First focused on prevention and early
intervention for children 0-6 whose parents were
at risk, young, low-income, socially isolated, or
new to urban life.
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I WELL-BEING SERVICES

Well-Being Services made significant progress this year in enhancing child and family services in
the six member communities we serve. Operating under the Progressive Model, Well-Being
Services incorporates a First Nations approach to child protection, empowering member
communities to develop programs reflecting their cultures, customs, and priorities.

STC's delegation agreement with the Ministry of Social Services was renewed in March 2024 for
five years, allowing us to strengthen both our programs and our collaboration with First Nations.

ONGOING SUPPORT

Over the past year, Well-Being Services provided a range
of protection supports for children and families in the
six member communities, including intake and
investigations, ongoing family support, attending court
proceedings, home visits and reviews, case
management, referrals to services, and advocacy on
behalf of relatives.

We also assisted youth moving between homes,
applying for low-income housing, and obtaining
identification documents.

In one case, we secured a laptop through Indigenous
Disability Canada’s Student Learning Program, enabling
a relative to complete online classes while they were
Director of Well-Being Services living on an acreage.

MARY WALL

STC member communities are developing their own
child welfare systems following the 2019 passage of
federal Bill C-92, enabling Indigenous communities to

,, transition at their own pace toward exercising partial,
or full control over child and family services.

VV.eII'Bem_g Services mcorpon?tes Well-Being Services supports member communities in
a First Nations approach to child these efforts, recognizing that a preventative approach

protection, empowering member that keeps children connected to their communities,
communities to develop cultures, and families will be essential for development

. . and lifelong success.
programs reflecting their cultures, d

customs, and priorities.” As STC advances in providing Child & Family Well-Being
Services, it will continue to support member
communities development by providing a strong
foundation that ensures the continued success of our
programs while keeping the needs of children and
families at the forefront.
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POST-MAJORITY CARE

Well-Being Services received funding in June 2023 to
offer comprehensive support tailored to meet the
distinct needs of First Nations youth and young adults
(ages 18-26) transitioning out of care.

These initiatives resulted in positive outcomes for
youth as they move into adulthood. In 2023, we
hosted 20 presentations for six member communities
to identify eligible activities and necessary supports,
and we established a provincial support network that
meets monthly to address issues relevant to post-
majority care.

PROGRESSIVE MODEL

Using Progressive Model funding received from the
federal government, the Well-Being Services
department allocated money to member
communities to implement community-specific
prevention services.

This initiative resulted in over 300 activities, engaging
roughly 65,000 participants, including 34,000 children
from 30,000 families.

Additionally, over 1,700 children received
intervention support through primary, secondary,
and tertiary prevention services this year.

Over 1,000 children benefited from assistance
provided in their homes as a result of this project.

MEMBER COMMUNITIES

Well-Being Services is proud to serve the communities
of Kinistin Saulteaux Nation, Mistawasis Néhiyawak,
Muskeg Lake Cree Nation, Muskoday First Nation, One
Arrow First Nation, and Whitecap Dakota Nation.

We are deeply grateful to the people of our member
communities, their Chiefs and Councils, and band staff
for their trust and partnership over the past year. This
ongoing collaboration has strengthened our ability to
respond to the needs of children, youth, and families
with care, compassion, and cultural integrity.

Together, we continue to build a future where every

child can grow up safe, supported, and connected to
their community.

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

JORDAN'’S PRINCIPLE SPECIALIZED
SERVICES

Well-Being Services established a funding agreement
to reduce child apprehensions by providing cognitive
and physical supports to children and youth within
STC member communities, in collaboration with over
20 contracted partners.

By the end of the fiscal year, over 1,000 children and
youth benefited from services across 80 areas.
Positive outcomes included decreased behavioral
issues, improved mental health, speech and language
development, and support for psychological
assessments related to Autism Spectrum Disorders.

PROGRESSIVE MODEL FUNDING - KEY NUMBERS:

300+
65,000
34,000
1,700+
1,000+

Activities

Total participants
engaged

Children among
participants engaged

Children receiving
intervention support

Children benefitting from
assistance provided in-home

SAULTEAUX
NATION
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I WELLNESS

In 2023/24, STC's Wellness Department advanced community-based health, mental wellness, and
public health initiatives in the STC member communities it serves.

Our staff recorded thousands of interactions with relatives, delivering holistic care and culturally
appropriate services centred on individuals and families. We focused this year on home care,
community health, maternal and child health, mental wellness, harm reduction, and emergency
preparedness to address disparities in health outcomes experienced by Indigenous people.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

STC is committed to continuous quality improvement
of programs, services, and workplace culture. Quality
Assurance monitors and evaluates risk management
and incident reporting, ensuring Wellness consistently
meets and exceeds Accreditation Canada standards.

Quality Assurance reviewed 921 occurrence reports
organization-wide in 2023/24—a 44% decrease from
1,649 last year—reflecting stronger risk mitigation and
growing understanding among STC staff of early
reporting and response.

The Quality Assurance and Accreditation

JENNIFER AHENAKEW Coordinators worked closely 'th-IS year to strengthen
_ processes, support staff, and reinforce a culture of
Director of Wellness safety and commitment to high-quality care.

ACCREDITATION QUALITY ASSURANCE OCCURRENCES - 2022/23
AND 2023/24:

Accreditation is widely used by health and social B 202223 [ 202324

service organizations to improve outcomes and

system performance. 250

Wellness, the STC Health Centre and STC member

communities in health transfer are dedicated to 200

meeting and exceeding standards of excellence

required to maintain Accreditation Canada’s highest 150

designation: Accredited with Exemplary Standing.

We achieved this designation for the second time in 100

December 2022, and it will remain valid until

November 2027. 50

Wellness staff and leadership continue working to 0

ensure care and services are accessible, professional, v,Q" Qfo* = $ v&c’@Q‘ & \§°4 & v & @""

and in line with national and international standards.
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KNOW YOUR STATUS

Know Your Status (KYS) is a prevention-through-
education program seeking to reduce Sexually
Transmitted and Blood Borne Infection (STBBI) rates
in central and southern Saskatchewan.

Staff offer evidence-based education on HIV,
Hepatitis C, and Sexually Transmitted Infections,
along with culturally based harm reduction. The
program focuses on Indigenous people, people who
use drugs, youth, and those who are incarcerated or
recently released.

KYS delivered 28 in-person presentations in 2023/24,
including six at STC's Emergency Wellness Centre, 16
at Tkwaéskicik Iskwéwak, four in Kamsack, and two at
the Saskatoon Correctional Centre Urban Camp,
reaching 140 participants.

A temporary ban issued in August 2023 on third-party
sexual health education in Saskatchewan schools
limited our ability to meet program objectives for
youth engagement.

Expanded partnership with the Saskatchewan Health
Authority allowed KYS to provide STBBI and harm
reduction information in emergency departments.

A new Know Your Status website is being developed
for integration with STC's main website, which will
enhance public access to resources. The STBBI
Technical Working Group continues to meet quarterly
for education and knowledge exchange.

KYS PRESENTATIONS — AGE GROUPS REACHED:

35-49

Total: 140 relatives

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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JORDAN'’S PRINCIPLE

Jordan’s Principle ensures First Nations children can
access needed products, services, and supports.

In 2023/24, staff supported 1,856 children from 97
First Nations, managing 714 cases and securing
approvals for needs such as rent, utilities, educational
resources, and cultural and health services.

Our Jordan'’s Principle team worked with families,
service providers, and partners to reduce barriers and
provide timely, culturally appropriate care. Staff also
delivered presentations to external organizations and
internal STC departments.

MATERNAL CHILD HEALTH (MCH)

Maternal Child Health (MCH) enhances the growth
and development of infants and young children,
supporting healthy mothers and families.

Weekly home visitors worked with 922 families in STC
member communities this year, using assessment and
evaluation tools to support planning and track
outcomes. Community home visitors received training
in the Ages and Stages Questionnaire for assessing
child development.

Five home visitors trained as car seat technicians,
enabling them to offer clinics in their communities.
MCH also secured funding for a Little Free Library
program to promote literacy for families with
children under five in member communities.

MCH KEY NUMBERS - 2023/24:

922
1,148
75
188
102
82
307

Families served

Home visits

Babies born

Case management
sessions

Referrals

Screenings for
postpartum depression

Ages & Stages
Questionnaires completed
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HOME & COMMUNITY CARE (HCC)

Home and Community Care (HCC) offers case
management, treatment, rehabilitation, health
promotion, and education services to help clients live
independently at home.

Staff made 13,552 home visits this year in member
communities, supporting 897 clients. Of these, 70%
required long-term care for chronic conditions, while
30% received acute, rehabilitative, or maintenance
care. Admissions rose to 428 in 2023, up from 90 in
2022 and 106 in 2021, driven by rises in early hospital
discharges and mental health and addictions needs.

Staff delivered 24,585 hours of support this year.
While nursing hours have held steady in recent years,
care needs have become more acute and specialized.

Early hospital discharges led to a rise to 400 acute care
clients this year, up from 135 in 2021. Demand has
increased for services designated as Specialty Nursing
Practices under provincial regulations. These require
added staff training, certification, and evaluation.
Accreditation and Quality Improvement processes
have adapted to ensure client and staff safety.

HCC purchased equipment to test blood flow in the
lower limbs, and trained member community nurses
to use it for early prevention of amputations.

The Aboriginal Diabetes Initiative offered community-
based prevention, education, and management with
support from HCC staff and STC nutritionists.

TOTAL HOURS OF SERVICE PROVIDED, BY YEAR:

2016/17 16,578
2022/23 17,763

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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HCC NUMBERS OF CLIENTS, BY CARE TYPE:

. 202324 [ 2022/23

2021/22

Acute care

Mental Health
& Addictions

Acute Wound

135
84
67
39

13
Palliative 12

10

HCC COMMUNITY INTERACTIONS - 2023/24:

[ April || 523 | ! | ! |
[ may [ 513 | 7 I 7 |
[ wne J[ 2 | 7 [ 7 |
[y [ 20 0 o [ o ]
[ August || 103 | 1 | ! |
| September || 94 | > | > |
| October || 179 | 4 | 4 |
| November || 122 | 4 | 4 |
| December || 207 [ 6 | 6 |
| January || 127 | 3 | 3 |
| February || 249 | 3 | > |
| March || 204 | 7 | ! |

HOME CARE SERVICE HOURS, BY TYPE - 2023/24:

Assisted
Living
Personal
Care

Case
Management

Total: 24,585 hours
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COMMUNITY HEALTH PROGRAM IMMUNIZATION COVERAGE

Based at STC's Saskatoon head office, the Community = STC ONE-YEAR-OLD IMMUNIZATION COVERAGE:
Health Program Manager provides second-level _
supervision and support for Community Health Nurses ~Fertussis 1 dose <91 days

(CHNs) and health programs in member communities, DTap-IVP

and oversees the Communicable Disease Outreach H influenza type b 61%
and Central Tuberculosis (TB) programs. This includes  Pneumo Conjugate 13
ensuring all staff have necessary qualifications and Rotavirus

are working within their scope of practice.
STC TWO-YEAR-OLD IMMUNIZATION COVERAGE:

Second-level support is offered for community health  prap.vp
program delivery, and advocacy for services at H influenza type b
regional and provincial forums. The program Pneumo Conjugate 13 67%
;nanagc.ar T a;l‘so resrc)jon.ﬂble for STC's cznc’;.ral .v;cc.me Hepatitis A
epot, including ordering, storage, and distribution. MMR
- - - Men-C-C
A pilot project was launched in 2023/24 to address a en UL
Varicella 42%

gap in access to specialized services in a member

community and respond to a rising number of clients  sTC SEVEN-YEAR-OLD IMMUNIZATION COVERAGE:
requiring support. Community leadership was

notified, and STC arranged for specialized staff to be ~ DTap-IVP
brought in. While this initiative was not part of Hinfluenza type b
regular community health service delivery, additional ~ Pneumo Conjugate 13 93%
support was needed to address a concerning situation. Hepatitis A

MMR
Low uptake in routine childhood, school and adult Men-C-C
immunizations was observed in member community Varicella 82%
health programs. This was linked to COVID-19 taking
precedence in prior years, vaccine hesitancy, and STC TWO-YEAR-OLD AVERAGE COVERAGE HISTORY:

staffing issues both within STC and in member

0,
communities. We continue striving to reach 95% 69% 57% 51% 48% 50%
coverage across all age groups in order to avoid the

resurgence of vaccine-preventable diseases. 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

STC SCHOOL AGE IMMUNIZATION COVERAGE - 2023/24 SCHOOL YEAR:

. . Received One dose Previously s Total Cohort Average
Population Antigen . + + . . Refused vaccine
required doses short immunized Coverage Coverage
) 0 )

Grade 6 || Men-ACYW-135 (1 dose) 57 (72.2% - 6(7.6% 72.2%
Total: 79 ||Hepatitis B 2 doses) || 33@18%) || 21(66%) || 0 | swew || a1s% | 52.3%
Students’ |HPV (2 doses) || 34 (43.0%) || 20 (25.3%) || 0 || 6 (7.6%) || 43.0% |
[DTap-IVP (1 dose) | #1631% || ; | 260w || oussw || e42% |
Grade 8 |[Men-AcYw-135 (1 dose) || 48(73.8%) || ; | 260w || sa23w || 746% |
|Hepatitis B (2 doses) || 37 (56.9%) || 15 (23.1%) || 2 (3.0%) || 9 (13.8%) || 58.2% |
Total: 67 71.4%
Students® |[HPV (2 doses) | 37652%) || 13019.4%) || 0 | 100a9% || 55.2% |
|MMR (2 doses) || 40 (85.1%) || 1(2.1%) || 20 (29.9%) || 6 (12.8%) || 89.6% |
Varicella (2 doses 40 (81.6% 3(6.1% 18 (26.9% 6 (12.2% 86.6%
| (dosey || a0@16%) || 361%) || 18@esw || e022% || |

* Population totals reflect highest number of students recorded in November.
1 Percentages are based on eligible students (excluding those previously immunized).
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CENTRAL TB PROGRAM

The Central TB Program supports treatment,
surveillance, education, and training in 23 First Nation
communities in central Saskatchewan.

Training was delivered in 2023/24 to CHNs and TB
program workers in affected communities, despite
staffing changes and vacancies. Strong partnerships
were further developed with Sask. TB Control, ISC TB,
and the catchment area communities.

The program has maintained the lowest TB rates in
Saskatchewan from 2019-2023, but staff still
responded to new active cases this year.

TB RATES IN CENTRAL TB PROGRAM AREA VS. SK- FIRST NATIONS, SK-PROVINCE, AND CANADA:

. Canada

. SK-FN . Central TB area SK - Province

100

80

60

40

TB rates per 100,000

e 0
0
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

COMMUNICABLE DISEASE PROGRAM CD PROGRAM NOTIFIABLE DISEASE COUNTS:
The Communicable Disease (CD) program is
| ss5

mandated by the provincial government to respond | Chlamydia || 41 ]| 35 || 38 | 63 |
to outbreaks and epidemics. | Hepatitisc || 15 || 7 || 4 || 8 | & |

[ av JL o 2 J o] o o]
This includes providing reporting, follow-up, | Gonorrhea || 11 || 19 || 19 |[ 18 | 30 |
treatment, and contact tracing for 150 reportable | Syphilis 1 1 & [ 25 |[ a5 |[ 29 |
di.seases. Under the program, STC Cor.nmunicable [ Coronavirus || o || 241 || e32 || 17 || 1 |
Disease (?lljtreach RNs support CHN's in member | Influenza T o I o I o I[ 1+ |[ 1 |
communities. -

| Pertussis || 1 || 0 || 0 || 0 || 0 |
Program staff increased access to STBBI testing in | IGAS Lz L s L1 [l o || 1 |
2023/24, holding 17 mass screening events with | IPD L3 L o JL 2 |l 2 [ 1 |
incentives offered to encourage participation. These | salmonellosis || 1 ][ o || o [[ o | o |
screenings allowed for earlier intervention in | Ecoliinfecton || o || o || 1 | o | o |
situations where positive cases were identified. [ Campylobacteriosis || 0 || o || 1 | o | o |

| Total || 76 | 315 || 723 || 146 || 132 |
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INTEGRATED WELLNESS INTEGRATED WELLNESS SERVICES - 2023/24:

Integrated Wellness combines the Living Well carvite Times Family
Program and the Community Addictions Prevention provided |involvement
Program to support and guide relatives from STC |5creening & Basic assessment ” 115 ” 1
member communities through their mental wellness

and addictions journeys. |B"Ef Intervention ” 432 ” 24 |
|Comprehensive Assessment ” 112 ” 3 |

Staff recorded a total of 6,782 interactions this year,
y |Direct Counselling ” 186 ” 16 |

providing service to 3,539 unique relatives. Cultural
training was offered to Mental Health and Addictions |Cri5is Response/CISM Debriefing ” 151 ” 16
workers, along with specialized training for STC

. |Case Management/Continued Care” 220 || 71 |

employees and member community staff.
|Suicide Prevention/Intervention ” 58 ” 9 |
A combined total of 267 STC employees and |CU|ture_Based support ” 163 ” 1 |

community members completed Applied Suicide
Intervention Skills Training (ASIST), while 25 STC and TOP 5 PRESENTING ISSUES:
member community employees participated in Group
Crisis Intervention Skills Training, and Assisting
Individuals in Crisis.

Addiction

In addition, 45 relatives received safeTALK training,
45 completed Trauma-Informed Care training, and
both STC and community staff accessed training on
grief and loss, self-care, and resiliency.

Stress &
Coping

Grief & Loss

Presentations were delivered in each community on
alcohol and crystal meth use, and sexual abuse. Staff
also delivered the Journey 2 Wellness suicide
prevention program in six schools.

Core Issues

Consistent professional support was provided through
regular team meetings, and clinical supervision of

staff in member communities. otakie/ 3001 nteractions

RELATIVES SERVED, DEMOGRAPHICS - 2023/24: TOP 5 DISCLOSED SUBSTANCE USE/ADDICTION:

Adult Female

Crystal Meth

Adult Male

Youth Female
Crack/Cocaine

Youth Male

Child Female

Narcotics

Child Male

Total: 3,539 relatives Total: 3,317 interactions
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INDIAN RESIDENTIAL SCHOOL CHILD & YOUTH MENTAL HEALTH

SUPPORT PROGRAM (IRSS) NAVIGATORS (CYMHN)

IRSS supports survivors and their families in all phases  Child & Youth Mental Health Navigators (CYMHN)

of the Indian Residential School Settlement provide culturally grounded support complementing

Agreement, offering counselling, cultural existing programs in schools. They deliver education

connections, and referrals to Elders, healers, and on suicide prevention, substance use, mental health,

other wraparound care. pregnancy, and homelessness; attend student support
meetings; and connect youth with cultural supports

The program now also serves Day Scholars, those and referrals to STC and community services.

affected by Day Schools, the Sixties Scoop, and

Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and Girls This year, staff recorded 890 interactions with 193
(MMIWG). IRSS workers facilitate sharing circles, grief ~ unique relatives. Of these, 171 (88.6%) were

and loss workshops, and education on the history and Indigenous, reflecting the program’s value in
impacts of Residential Schools and related issues. connecting with Indigenous youth.

IRSS RELATIVES/INTERACTIONS, BY TYPE - 2023/24: CYMHN -DEMOGRAPHICS OF RELATIVES SERVED:

. Unique relatives . Interactions Indigenous . Non-Indigenous

567
. Male
74

Residential School Day School MMIWG

171

BACKGROUND

GENDER

HEALTH FACILITY OPERATIONS & HEALTH FACILITY ADVISOR SITE VISITS — 2023/24:

MAINTENANCE
FACILITY SITE VISITS
STC Wellness partners with STC Housing and Technical __

Services to offer second-level support for health
facility operations in member communities through Kinistin Health Centre n
the Health Facility Advisor.

Mistawasis Health Centre 10
The Advisor offers on-site training for community
staff, along Wlth troubleshootlng ar\d emerge.ncy . Muskeg Lake Health Centre 9
response for building HVAC, plumbing, electrical, fire
protection, and control systems. Technical guidance is
also provided to member community health directors. |Muskoday Health Centre 19
This year, the Advisor completed maintenance One Arrow Health Centre 8
management plans for each member community, and
contmugd deve!oplng a comprehenswe.lp\./entory of Yellow Quill Health Centre 12
the equipment in each community’s facilities.
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NUTRITION SERVICES NUTRITION SERVICES DELIVERY 2021/22 — 2023/24:

- . . . Community Individual Social Media
Nutrition Services delivers programs in Saskatoon and N, B Counselling posts
STC member communities focused on health
promotion, healthy pregnancies, infant nutrition,
food security, and chronic and acute illness 2021/22 b
management. 158
Service delivery rose steadily over the course of this 81
year through increased community visits and 2022/23 08
individual client appointments. 86

Community dietitians, working with member
community and urban staff, offered community
kitchens, grocery store tours, school-based activities,
health fair displays, and the Treaty Day Fresh Food
Market. Staff responded this year to increased
requests for school nutrition support, physical activity
education, and food security initiatives.

2023/24

Amid an ongoing shortage of physical activity and
exercise professionals in member communities,
dietitians expanded their delivery of physical activity
programming this year. This included leading yoga
classes, pickleball sessions, and co-developing a
Functional Movement Guide.

Educational sessions delivered in urban programs and
member communities in 2023/24 covered topics
including diabetes education, pre- and post-natal
nutrition, infant feeding, menu planning, home
gardening, physical activity education, and the effects

of nutrition on kldney. and liver health, mental Nutrition Services staff helped provide th Treaty Day Fresh Food Market
health, and hypertension. in member communities this year.

In Saskatoon, programming was delivered in STC's
children’s and transitional homes, White Buffalo
Youth Lodge, and the Emergency Wellness Centre.

Dietitians also contributed to working groups on
diabetes, food security, physical activity, and nutrition
policy. Two practicum students were mentored this
year, including support in developing a Pre- and Post-
Natal Nutrition Activity Guide.

The STC Community Nutrition Facebook page
remained an important education and promotion
tool, sharing over 60 posts on recipes, cooking
demonstrations, and physical activity. Social media
activity decreased this year, reflecting a stronger focus
on in-person programming.

Nutrition Services offered a Learn to Cook program for Grade 6 students
in STC Member Communities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH

Environmental Public Health (EPH) includes a
program manager, Environmental Public Health
Officer (EPHO), and Water Quality Monitors who
track and report on health conditions in STC member
communities. The program manager also oversees the
Emergency Management Specialist, who supports
communities in developing emergency, facility, and
fire safety plans.

The ISC-funded Emergency Management Model
Project was a major focus in 2023/24. Through
consultations with member communities, STC
departments, and outside agencies, the project
produced a comprehensive report and budget that
identified funding gaps and recommended a path
forward based on member First Nations' priorities.

SAFE DRINKING WATER PROGRAMS

In 2023/24, there were 32 Precautionary Drinking
Water Advisories issued on treated community water
systems.

Twelve water treatment plant inspections were
completed. Water Quality Monitors completed 2,190
bacterial samples and tests in 2023/24, along with 54
chemical analysis sample sets.

A total of 207 lead and copper samples were
collected in schools, daycares, and Head Start
programs in three member communities, ensuring
children’s facilities met water quality standards.

SAFE DRINKING WATER PROGRAM KEY NUMBERS:

32
12

Precautionary drinking water advisories
issued on treated water systems

Water treatment plant inspections

2,190
54

Bacterial samples and tests completed

Chemical analysis sample sets completed

Lead and copper samples collected at
member community children’s facilities

207
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EPH PROGRAM STAFF ACTIVITIES - 2023/24:

PROGRAM MANAGER ACTIVITY AMOUNT

| Precautionary Drinking Water Advisories

|
| Presentations || 6 |
|Tota| Facility Inspections || 26 |
| Other Meetings || 12 |
| Methamphetamine in Housing Meetings || 4 |
| Health Directors Meetings || 4 |
| Lead/Copper Sampling Meetings || 6 |
|0H&S Meetings || 13 |
|Wel|ness Manager Meetings || 25 |
| Emergency Management and EM Model Meetings || 45 |
| ISC Capital Project Team Meetings || 43 |

ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH OFFICER ACTIVITY AMOUNT

| Methamphetamine House Sampling

|
|Jordan's Principle Housing Support || 16 |
| Lead/Copper Sampling || 2 |
|Safe Food Handling Courses || 14 |
|Treaty Days || 6 |
| Presentations || 7 |
|Tota| Inspections || 146 |
| Other Meetings || 1 |
| Wellness Team Meetings || 7 |
| ISC Capital Project Team Meetings || 10 |

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SPECIALIST ACTIVITY AMOUNT

| Emergencies || 16 |
| Public Education Events || 2 |
|Training Sessions || 14 |
| EM Meetings || 6 |
| EM Model Project Sessions/Meetings || 7 |
| Facility Inspections || 146 |
| EM Forum || 11 |
[1cs-200 | 7 |
[1cs-100 [ 10 ]
| Wellness Team Meetings || 4 |
| STC Program Supports || 12 |
| Pow Wow Meetings || 8 |
| Professional Development Sessions || 4 |
|James Smith Cost Recovery Meetings || 2 |
| Outside Agency Meetings || 9 |
| EM Working Group Meetings || 2 |
[Other || 28 |
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The Saskatoon Tribal Council Health Bus provides mental health, dental and paramedicine services in STC member communities.

STC HEALTH BUS STC HEALTH BUS HIGHLIGHTS - 2023/24:
Operated since 2021 in partnership with mental 388 Contacts with relatives requesting mental
health& addictions services

health, dental, and paramedicine providers, the STC
Health Bus visits member communities for five-day
periods on a rotating basis through fall, winter, and 1 76 'c’;trzra"‘ims with relatives seeking dental
spring, with the bus undergoing maintenance in the

summer, but still available events. ] ) ) )
3 4 Interactions with relatives seeking

. . paramedic services
This year, Health Bus staff recorded 388 contacts with

relatives requesting mental health and addictions
services, 176 interactions with relatives seeking dental
care, and 34 interactions with relatives seeking
services from paramedics. 1 53

66 Classroom presentations delivered by
mental health staff

Fillings completed by dental staff

Mental health workers from the Health Bus delivered
66 classroom presentations, while dental staff 1 06

o Sealants completed by dental staff
completed 153 fillings and 106 sealants.

INDIGENOUS EARLY LEARNING AND
CHILD CARE

STC Wellness received $4,484,164 from Indigenous
Services Canada/First Nations and Inuit Health Branch
(FNIHB) to fund Child Care Centres and Aboriginal
Head Start On Reserve (AHSOR) programs in STC
member communities.

The seven member community Child Care Centres

serve a total of 146 children annually, while six
AHSOR programs serve 66 children annually.
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WHITE BUFFALO YOUTH
LODGE

The White Buffalo Youth Lodge (WBYL) achieved significant milestones in 2023-2024 by
empowering inner-city youth through programs and initiatives promoting holistic development.

As we approach our 25th anniversary, our team remains dedicated to providing a safe, inclusive
environment where youth can grow, thrive, and reach their full potential. We strive to meet the
diverse needs of our community’s youth and fulfill our vision of fostering a generation of
confident, skilled, and socially responsible individuals who contribute positively to society.

LIFE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

Our team successfully conducted life skill-building
workshops, mentorship programs, and a leadership
training camp in 2023-24. These programs gave
youth attending our facility real-world tools for
success, while building up confidence and leadership
qualities.

Our Youth Council offered weekly workshops
covering essential skills like communication and
problem-solving. Youth also had the opportunity to
learn about entrepreneurship and social enterprise
from experienced community mentors. Our summer
student employment opportunities offered in June,
July, and August offered leadership development
opportunities, and assisted youth in growing
qualities necessary for community engagement.

FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

WBYL has maintained a stable financial status, with
diverse funding sources including grants, donations,
and fundraising events.

Our income and expenditures are managed
efficiently to ensure the sustainability and growth of
our programs.

While we have faced challenges such as limited
resources and increasing demand for our services, we
learned valuable lessons throughout this year in
optimizing our operations and strengthening
community partnerships.

Recipe for success: WBYL's life skills programming helps youth develop
skills they need to be successful, independent adults.
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YOUTH HEALTH AND WELLNESS

Our health and wellness programs, fitness classes,
sports activities, and mental health workshops
continued to support the well-being of youth and
families this year.

The WBYL after-school program, our Youth Council
and collaboration with STC Education’s Pathways to
Success program all continued to provide valuable
opportunities for youth to develop healthy lifestyles
and a love of learning.

Arts and cultural programming further helped
support youth wellness, by encouraging young
people to embrace the sense of community and
identity found in their First Nations and Métis
heritage.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking ahead to 2024-25, WBYL aims to expand and
sustain our programs, to reach more youth, and further
enhance our impact in the community.

Our goals include launching new initiatives within social
enterprise and youth mentoring, increasing community
engagement, and securing additional funding to
support our mission.

We extend our heartfelt gratitude to our sponsors,
partners, volunteers, and staff for their support and
commitment. Their contributions over the past year
have been instrumental in achieving our successes and
will continue to drive our future endeavors.

Reaching high: WBYL's basketball programming in one of many
initiatives promoting youth physical activity and healthy lifestyles.

Back-to-School Backpack Giveaway: Staff, volunteers and community partners helped make the 2023 edition of WBYL's annual Back-to-School
Backpack Giveaway a success, with hundreds of school bags full of school supplies handed out to kids ahead of the start of classes .

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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DAKOTA DUNES COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

The Dakota Dunes Community Development Corporation (DDCDC) is a non-profit with a mandate
to distribute 25% of the net profits from Dakota Dunes Casino to charitable organizations located
within 75 km of Whitecap Dakota Nation.

This catchment area includes the Saskatoon Tribal Council and its member communities,
Touchwood Agency Tribal Council and its member communities, along with George Gordon First
Nation, and Fishing Lake First Nation.

REVENUE GROWTH

We witnessed a remarkable 33.16% increase in
gaming revenue from the previous year, reaching a
record-breaking $10.1 million.

This substantial growth not only marks a new
milestone but also paves the way for significant
community investments.

The total community investment for the fiscal year
stands at $4,794,351, with $1,928,970 earmarked for
the third intake in 2023/24, scheduled for
disbursement in early 2024/25.

SHIRLEY GREYEYES Addl.tlonally, $1.3 million has been e_accrued |n.
restricted assets for future community allocation.
Director — Dakota Dunes Community Development Corp.

This surge in revenue and the creation of restricted
A CATALYST FOR CHANGE assets enable us to make a more profound impact on
communities today and in the future, surpassing our
past achievements. It also ensures the continuity of
our operations.

DDCDC marked its 17th year in operation in 2023/24.

We have grown the DDCDC from modest beginnings

to the place we are today: setting best practice for KEY NUMBERS:
allocating revenue from First Nations gaming to
improve the lives of people in our community. We are +33.16% Increase in gaming revenue from

revious year
proud of how far we have come. P y

Community investment this

Over the past decade, we have allocated $75 million $4,794,3 51 fiscal year

to support communities and organizations within our »
h t Th tributi h ted $7 5 . I I . In support for communities over

catchmen .ar.efa. . ese con r|_ utions have supporte MiIion | te last 10 years

over 5,300 initiatives and projects.

5 300 Projects and initiatives supported
We have a robust granting system and strong internal ’ over the last 10 years
policies to ensure we are good stewards of the

resources entrusted to us.
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Docusign Envelope I1D: SD6543B0-920B-4E40-ABF6-81243E4BBOT1

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

February 26, 2025

The accompanying financial statements of Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc. are the responsibility of
management and have been approved by Board of Directors.

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards prescribed for governments as recommended by the Public Sector
Accounting Board and as such include amounts that are the best estimates and judgments of
management.

Management is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of these statements and for implementing
and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial
information is produced.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the
financial statements.

The Board of Directors meets periodically with management, as well as the external auditors, to discuss
internal controls over the financial reporting process, auditing matters and financial reporting issues, to
satisfy themselves that each party is properly discharging their responsibilities, and to review the
financial statements and the external auditor’s report.

The external auditors, BDO Canada LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with
Canadian auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements. The external
auditors have full and free access to financial management of Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc. and meet
when required.

[—Wh:
Shantelle Watson
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Directors of Saskatoon Tribal Council inc.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Saskatoon Tribal Councll Inc. (the Corporation), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 11, 2024, and the statements of changes
v ret flnancial assets, operations, and cash flows for the year then ended, and rotes 1o ithe
financial statements, including a summary of signfficant accountine policies.

In our opinion, the accompamying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation as at March 31, 2024, and its results of operations, its
measurement salmns and losses, its change in net Minancial assets, and its cash Nows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibitities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financtal Statements section of our report. We are Indépendent of the Corporation
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obiained i= sufficient and

appropriate 1o provide a basis for cur opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is respomsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
In sccordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for sueh Internal control as

determines s necestary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or eror

in preparing the financial statements, management is respomsible for assessing the Corparation’s
ability 1o continee 2 a going corcern, diclasing, as applicable, matlers related Lo going concern
and using the going concem basis of accounting eness management ither intends to liguidate the
Corporation of to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s financial
reporting process,

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obitaln rescnable assurance about whethor the financial stalements as a
whole ane free from material misstatement, whether doe 1o fraud or error, and o saue an auditor's
report that includes our opinfon. Reasonable assurance fs a high lewvel ol assurance, but s not a
quarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadlan generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect 3 material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from
traud or error and are consldered material If, individimlly or in the aggregate, Uhey could reasonably
Be expected o Influence the ecornomic declslon of wsers taken on the basks of these financial
statements.
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BDO

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgrment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to proyide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, ta modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence abtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

BDO Conada [LLFP

Chartered Professional Accountants

Saskatoon, Saskatchewan
February 26, 2025
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2024

Assets

Cath

Snort-Lierm Investments

Accounts receivable (noles 4 @nd B
Due Tiom related parties inote 8)

Liabitities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities inote 8)
Due o related parties (note 8)

Deferred revenue inole &)

Leng-term debt (nate 7)

Met financial assels
Hoen-financial attets

Prepaid
Tangible capital asseis (nore 5)

Accumulated surplus
Contingent liabillties (mote 114

Approved by the Board of Directors

Director

The ACCcampanying odl e Are o integral (il of Dise Tinancial siatemnents

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

2024 2021
5 $
13,460 386 14,634, 306
65,972 85,080
1,310,982 587,295
3,325,793 3,539,530
19,183,083 16.826,214
8,129,461 5,318,144
2,127 504 2,174,543
7,79, 165 10,594,801
13,182 38,791
18,049 514 18,076,299
1,133,269 743,915
B9,750 40,454

56,906 57,281
144,656 97,735
1.279,925 247,650

_ Ol i
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Budget 2024 2023

5 $ 5

Operating surplus (deficit) for the year (1,366,622) 432,275 130,014
Amortization of tangible capital assets (note 5) - 48,862 53,982
Purchase of tangible capital assets (note 5) - (66,901) -
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets - 18,414 -
Net change in prepaid expenses - (49,296) 1,377
Change in net financial assets (1,366,622) 383,354 185,373
Net financial assets - Beginning of year 749,915 749,915 564,542
MNet financial assets (debt) - End of year {616, 707) 1,133,269 749,915

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Budget 1024 013
5 5 g
Revenue

indigenous Services Canada 12,568,013 9,836,933 B, 268
Pathways to Education 1,686,107 1,364,258 1,271,086
STC Health & Family Services Inc. (note 8) 994,941 827,885 818,862
Employment & Social Development Canada 1,671,703 748,688 #15, 60
Department of Justice Canada 914,820 514,511 3141 826
Dakota Dunes Community Development Corporation (note 8) 290,688 338,593 392, 80
STC Urban First Mations Services Inc. (note 8) 224,750 118,133 B3 a5g
Hulrien 446,100 3,973 33,798
Sackatchewan Indian Institute of Technology 413,624 97,511 A3
School Drivisions 274,000 256,000 8 427
Satkatchewan Justice 371,320 254, 410 U531
Ministry of Health 250,000 230,000 230,000
STC Casino Holdings Limited Partnership (note 8) 215,000 225,000 225,000
City of Saskatoon 186,126 188,155 180,942
Interest 10,000 139,433 33,534
Sazkatchewan Government Insurance 73,762 111,854 95,974
Oither 209,137 95,878 293,462
Parks Canada 63,750 63,750 11,250
SaskEnergy 48,500 53,500 32,838
Sackatchewan Lotteries 62,100 48,100 48,100
First Mations Trust 261,525 40,175 130,865
STC Industrial Contracting Limited Partnership (note 8) 30,000 30,000 30,000
STC Investments Limited Partnership (note 8) 30,000 30,000 30,000
Sackatchewan First Mations Tech Services Coop 15,000 12,761 11,534
Cress Housing Corporation (note &) - 18,750 5,000
One Arnow First Mation 13,800 13,800 13,800
Building Bridges for the Futwre Saskatoon Inc. (note 8) 9,412 9,438 9,357
Fundraising 5,400 5,400 95,900
Federation of ign Indi Hations 5,000 5,000 23,412
Whitecap Dakota First Nation. 32,650 : 32,640
Murskoday First Nation 30,057 . 30,057
Lake Crese Hation 29,975 - 29,975
Service Canada = - 10,417
21,447,360 16,479,889 14,919,965

Expenditures (notes 8 and 9)
Education 2,060,368 1,664,096 1,396,477
Pre-Employment Supports Program 1,500,000 1,564,502 1,722,377
Pathways to Education 1,686,107 1,214,643 1,133,576
Education Partnership Program Advancement 955,930 952,136 654,272
Urban Program Indigencus Program - Food Security 985,662 BE96, 462 376,815
First Hations IELCC 1,671,703 768,688 635,600
Education Partnership Program: Structural Readiness 1,434,677 622,994 522,16
ific Projects B, 611 565,674 719,369
ribal Council Funding Advisors 545,680 477,025 181,935
Economic Development 422,100 463,795 465,327
Governance 551,003 458,891 491,453
Justice 487,701 427,244 456,601
Building sublease 419,864 421,281 W6,N7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Statement of Operations ...continued
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Budget 2024 2013
5 $ 5
Housing Circuit Rider Training 374,686 37,81 251,047
Trust Source Partnership Pilot 4,875 311,902 119,308
Teclmiv:ai Services 667 876 311,686 578,547
mergency Management Assistance 276,650 302,061 ",250
Enﬂwlmi & Training Services (ISETS) 413,624 297,511 711,333
Corporate Services 376,909 296,089 349,570
Human Resources. 41-5.1511 278,493 2-!9.43!
Family Violence 764,161 260,40 89,107
Recognition of Indigenous Rights & Self-Determination 329,102 IIS 621 13,185
Education COVID-19 Support 252,644 220,000 35,600
Admintstration 220,964 199,574 154, 384
Circuit Rider Training Program 196, 682 19? 307 174 535
Information Technology 309,609 153,[!]] 247,568
Hutrien Industry Partnership s *PI' 170,000 1?!],[!]0
Justice Youth Reintegration 323,999 166,739 -
Health Family Maintenance m.mu 165,472 -
Invitational Shared Services Initiative Grad Mentor G55 174,000 156,000 32,761
First Mation Technical Service Alliance 409,151 139,655 -
Youth, Sport, Culture & Recreation 193,220 1]-1- 021 297,143
Special Education 176,730 133,855 164,055
Treaty Office 143,677 113,696 224,258
Super Saturday 166,170 111,973 118,288
SGI Traffic Safety 73,762 102,020 86,140
Inrvitational Shared Services Initiative Grad Mentor HESD 100,000 100, 000 109, 666
UPIP Coalition Stream 100,000 100,000 .
Hation Rebuilding 96,949 96,949 -
Finanoe Services & HR Information System - PRID 72,013 79,074 53,229
First Mations & Inuit Youth Employment Strategy 206,482 62,248 16,552
Parks Canada 63,750 59,502 10,500
Chief Executive Officer 233,168 4'9 077 Nz
Commumications 47,548 42,350 HA4AT
Justice Project 44,000 41,177 21,289
ional Education Agreements G4, 40 220 143,582
Operation Continuing Education 25,000 zu 238 57,449
Justice Urban Camp 115,000 4.53]' .
Iustice - Gladue Project 216,400 3,551 1,826
SAHC 34,000 2,500 3,800
Career Fair - 430 -
Every Child Matters Event Services . . 166,519
Band Employee Benefits = . 76,694
72,813,982 15,997,614 14,789,951
Operating surplus (deficit) for the year {1,366,622) 432,175 130,014
Accumulated surplus - Beginning of year 847,650 B47,650 7,636
Accumulated surplus (deficit) - End of year {518,972) 1,279,925 B47,650
Segment disclosure (note 14)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities
Operating surplus (deficit) for the year
Items not affecting cash

Amortization of tangible capital assets {note 5)

Changes in non-cash working capital items
-term investments
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Prepaid expenses

Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets
Purchase of tangible capital assets (note 5)

Financing activities
Repayment of long-term debt
Advances to related parties
Advances from related parties

Net change in cash during the year
Cash - Beginning of year
Cash - End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024 2023
5
432,275 130,014
48,862 53,982
481,137 183,996
B42) (237)
(1,743,684) 101,91
2,811,299 233,469
(2,815,537) (73,038)
(49, 296) 1,377
(1,316,923) 447,538
18,414
166,901}
i48,487)
(25,609) 23,335)
213,738 (1,643,391)
3,361 535,931
191,490 (1,130,795)
(1,173,920) (683,257)
14,634,306 15,317,563
13,460,386 14,634,306
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Hotes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

1 Description of business

Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc. (the Corporation) comprises Mistawasis Nehiyawak, Whitecap Dakota, Kinistin,
Muskeg Lake, Muskoday, Yellow Quill and One Arrow First Hations and operates under written Principles of
Agreement for the benefit of the member First Nations. The Corporation was incorporated on February 15,
1989 under the Non-Profit Corporations Act of Saskatchewan and is not subject to income tax under the
provisions of paragraph 149(1) (d.5) of the Income Tax Act (Canada).

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles for government, as defined in the Public Sector Accounting Standards as issued by the Public
Sector Accounting Board and include the following significant accounting policies.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards
(PSAS) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses during the year. Estimates are based on the best information available at
the time of preparation of the financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as
it becomes available. Significant items subject to estimates and assumptions include: the valuation of
accounts receivable and due from relates parties. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events ocourred that gave rise to the
revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined
with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.

Government transfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authorized and any eligibility criteria
are met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of
a liability. Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability.
Transfer revenue is recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Contributions from other sources are deferred when restrictions are placed on their use by the contributor
and are recognized as revenue when wsed for the specific purpose.

Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service performed is
deferred and recognized when the fee is earned or service performed.

(1)
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Hotes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand, balances with banks net of bank overdrafts and term deposits having a maturity

of three months or less at acquisition, which are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments.

Employee benefit plans
The Corporation participates in a defined contribution pension plan for eligible employees. Under the

defined contribution plan, the Corporation’s obligations are limited to its contributions. The pension costs
are charged to operations as contributions are due and payable.

The obligations for vacation pay and banked time in lieu of overtime have been accounted for at an
undiscounted value at the current rate of pay.

Tangible capital assets and amortization

Tangible capital assets include acquired, built, developed and improved tangible capital assets, whose useful
lives extend beyond one year and which are intended to be used on an ongoing basis for delivering services.

Tangible capital assets are initially recorded at cost and are amortized over their expected wseful lives using
the straight-line method:

Office equipment and furnishing 5 years
Computer equipment and software 3.33 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Equipment 3 years
Vehicles 3 years

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to the
Corporation’s ability to provide goods and services or when the value of future economic benefits associated
with tangible capital assets is less than their net book value.

Donated assets

Donated assets are recorded at fair value when fair value can be reasonably estimated.

Financial instruments

The Corporation initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value, except for certain
instruments originated or acquired in related party transactions. The Corporation subsequently measures all
its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized cost, except for equity investments quoted in active

markets and derbvative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are

(2)
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Motes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable and
due from related parties. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and
accrued liabilities and due to related parties.

Transaction costs on financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost are adjusted against the
carrying value of the related asset or liability and then recognized over the expected life of the instrument
using the straight-line method. Transaction costs on equity imvestments quoted in active markels are
recognized immediately in the statement of operations.

&t the end of each reporting period, the Corporation assesses whether there are any indications that a
financial asset measured at amortized cost may be impaired. If there are indicators of impairment, and the
Corporation determines there has been a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of
future cash flows, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to the higher of the expected cash flows
expected to be generated by holding the asset, discounted using a current market rate of interest, and the
amount that could be realized by selling the asset at the statement of financial position date

3 Transfer of health programs to 5TC Health & Family Services Inc.

Effective April 1, 2002, the administration of all health programs (Health Services, Daycare, Mental Health,
Tuberculosis and Home Care) was transferred from the Corporation to STC Health & Family Services Inc.
Funding received prior to this transfer of 51,271,003 (2023 - $1,271,003) remains owing to STC Health &
Family Services Inc. as at March 31, 2024, and is anticipated to be transferred to 5TC Health & Family
Services Inc. in future years.

(3)
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Motes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

4 Accounts receivable

Indigenouws Services Canada
Muskeg Lake Cree Mation
Department of Justice Canada
Hawigizigweyas Education Centre
Canada Revenue Agency

Greater Saskatoon Catholic Schools
Muskoday First Mation

Whitecap Dakota First Mation

One Arrow First Nation

Saskatchewan First Nations Technical Services Co-op

Cress Housing Corporation (mote 8)
Other

Pathvways Canada

Mistawasis Nehiyvawak

Yellow Quill First Nation

Staff

City of Saskatoon

Horth East 5chool Division

BHP

Kinistin Saulteaux Nation
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2024 2023
s 5
1,669,030 14,505
121,200 69,745
98,525 69,000
93,513 93,513
90,248 83,945
80,000 -
47,086 47,086
32,640 10,213
18,478 22,107
22,761 7.878
19,111 703
14,943 19,397
8,469 75,401
3,338 16,785
Q46 11,541
694 1,580
. 19,656
10,4560
- 10,000
- 3,783
2,330,982 587,298

(4)
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Motes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

5 Tangible capital assets

Computer Office
equipment equipment
and and Leasehold 2024
software fumnishings improvements Equipment Vehicles Total
5 5 ] 5 5 5
Cost
Beginning of the year 486,284 534,040 163,126 63,509 245,362 1,492,421
Additions - - - - thl thl
mmh . . . v {55,141] 155,1'11]
End of the year 485,284 534,040 163,226 63,509 237,011 1,304,080
Accumulated
amortization
Beginning of the year 486,284 534,040 163,726 63,509 188,081 1,435,140
Amortization - - - - 48,862 48,862
Disposals - . - - {36,828) {36,828)
End of the year 486,284 334,040 163,136 63,509 200,115 1,447,174
. . - - 56,906 56,906
Computer Office
equipment equipment
and Leasehold 2023
software furnishings improvements Equipment Vehicles Total
7 5 5 5 5 5
Cost
Beginning of the year 486,284 534,040 163,226 63,509 245,362 1,492,421
Additions - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - -
End of the year 486,284 534,040 163,226 63,509 245,362 1,492 421
Accumulated
amortization
Beginning of the year 486,284 534,040 163,226 63,509 134,059 1,381,158
Amortization - - - - 53,982 53,982
Disposals - . . -
End of the year 486,284 534,040 163,226 63,509 188,081 1,415,140
57,281 57,281
(5)
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Motes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

6 Deferred revenue

Balance - Balance -
March 31, Amount March 31,
2023 Recognized deferred 2024
5 5 5 5
Indigenous Services Canada 8,749,693 18.572.159) 3,151,381 5,328,815
Other sources 1,845,108 (1.413,287) 2,018,629 2,450,450
10,594,801 (9,985,546) 7,170,010 7,779,265
Balance - Balance -
March 31, Amount March 31,
2022 Recognized deferred 2023
5 5 5 5
Indigenous Services Canada 8,725,035 (8,555,003) 8,579,661 8,749,693
Other sources 1,942,804 11,531,920) 1,434,224 1,845,108
10,667,839 (10,086,923) 10,013,885 10,594,801
7 Long-term debt
2024 2023
5 5
Toyota Financial Services financed loan; repayable in monthly
blended payments of principal and interest of $879, at a rate
of 2%, maturing on June 2026 13,182 23,725
Toyota Financial Services financed loan; repayable in monthly
blended payments of principal and interest of 51,066, at a
rate of 2%, maturing on May 2025 15,066
13,182 318,791

The estimated principal payments due in each of the next three years and thereafter are as follows:

2025
2026

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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5
10,548
2,634
(6)
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Motes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

8 Related parties

Related party transactions are recorded at the exchange amount as agreed to by the related parties. All
parties noted below are related by common control of the Saskatoon Tribal Council member First Nations.

Other than items specifically disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements and notes, the following is a
list of significant related party transactions.

2024 2023
5

STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.
Due from related parties 1,379,506 1,593,598
Due to related parties 324,842 413,931
Employee salaries and wages . 143,457
Rent 119,740 163,670

Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
Due from related parties - 190,053
Due 1o related parties 450,669 22,992
Specific project payments 569,377 685,648
Cress Housing Corporation
Accounts receivable 19,111 703
Accounts payable 25,283 12,028
Rent 153,283 30,160
STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Due from related parties 1,403,962 1,480,771
Due to related parties 1,352,393 1,537,561
Specific project payments 838,256 452,517

5TC Investments Limited Partnership
Due from related parties 30,000 .

STC Industrial Contracting Limited Partnership
Due from related parties 30,000 30,000
Dakota Dunes Community Development Corporation
Due from related parties 282,324 245,108
Due to related parties . 150,059
(7
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Hotes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

9 Expenditures by object

2024 2023
5 5
Member First Hations Program payments 3,299,072 4,415,618
Specific project payments (note B) 4,122,983 3,570,238
Employee salaries and wages (note 8) 3,376,047 31,429,714
Rent (note 8) 699,712 686,806
Employee benefits 501,414 506,522
Board honorarium and travel 362,288 T4, 197
Meetings and workshops 350,934 379,158
Consulting and contracts 196,558 402,833
Equipment 174,645 52,122
Travel 153,163 160,884
Vehicles 121,118 96,554
Professional fees 119,643 119,697
Computer support 96,235 92,138
Elders and senators 57,309 43,361
Telephone 54,048 44277
SaskEnergy partnership 33,500 32,838
Amortization 48,862 53,982
Copier and fax machines 48,336 36,635
Supplies and materials 40,504 67,283
Advertising 27,249 105,542
Interest and service charges 23,893 20,140
Professional development 20,481 28,375
Donations 11,910 18.811
Irsurance 11,849 12,002
Repairs and maintenance 9,549 i
Postage 8,775 12,657
Sundries 5,337 7,009
15,997,614 14,789,951

10 Financial instruments and risk management
The Corporation's financial instruments expose it to a variety of financial risks.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Corporation to credit
risk consist principally of cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable and due from related parties.

The Corporation’s cash and short-term investments are maintained at major financial institutions; therefore,
the Corporation considers the risk of non-performance of these instruments to be remote.

The majority of the Corporation’s due from related parties are due from related parties that have sufficient
cash to pay the balances, while accounts receivable are primarily due from various levels of government and

(8)
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

MWotes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

as such collection is reasonably assured. The Corporation believes the credit risk related to these receivables
is low,

As at March 31, 2024 the following financial assets were past due but not impaired:
Over 1 year

Trade receivables $203,333

All ather financial assets were not past due.

The Corparation is exposed to concentration risk in its due from related parties balance as two related
parties make up 96% (2023 - 87%) of total due from related parties.

The Corporation's maximum exposure to credit risk for its financial instrument assets are the amounts
recorded on the statement of financial position plus any allowance recorded.

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk the Corporaticn will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come due.
Liquidity risk also includes the risk of not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner at a reasonable
price. The Corporation is exposed to liquidity risk as a result of being econamically dependent on funding
from Indigenous Services Canada. The Corporation’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it has
sufficient cash flows available to fund its operations and to meet its obligations when due, under bath
normal and stressed circumstances,

The Corparation maintains an authorized line of credit of $700,000 (2023 - 5700,000), of which $nil 2023 -

Snil) was drawn on as at March 31, 2024. Interest on outstanding credit is calculated at the prime rate plus
1%. The line of credit is secured by the Corporation’s funding agreement with Indigenous Services Canada.

The Corparation is exposed to concentration risk in its due to related parties balance as one related party
makes up 64% (2023 - 72%) of total due from related parties.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises the three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk. The Corporation is exposed to interest rate rish.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in
the interest rate. Changes in market interest rates may have an effect on the cash flows associated with

(9)
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Hotes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

some financial assets and liabilities, known as interest rate risk, and on the fair value of other financial
assets or liabilities, known as fair value risk. The Corporation’s exposure to interest rate risk was as follows:
o  line of credit - variable interest rate;

« short-term investments - fixed interest rate; and

+«  long-term debt (note 7) - fixed interest rat

To mitigate the interest rate, risk the Corporation enters fixed interest rate financial liabilities where
possible. The Corporation does not actively mitigate the fair value risk as the financial instruments are not
managed based upon their fair value. As the Corporation only incurred expenses related to its fixed interest
rate long-term debt and did not utilize its line of credit during the year, the Corporation had minimal
exposure to future cash flow interest rate risk.

11 Pension plan

The Corporation provides a defined contribution plan for eligible members of its staff. Members are required
to contribute a portion of their salary, with the Corporation matching a portion of this contribution. The
persion expense in the current year was $177,043 (2023 - $255,141). The benefits accrued to the
Corporation’s employees are calculated based upon salary, years of service and employment level.

12 Budgeted figures

Unaudited budgeted figures have been provided for comparative purposes and have been derived from the
amounts approved by the Board of Directors.

13 Contingent liabilities

The Corparation has entered into contribution agreements with various federal government departments.
Funding received under these contribution agreements is subject to repayment if the Corporation fails to
comply with the terms and conditions of the agreements.

14 Segment disclosure

The Corparation provides a range of services to its members. For management reporting purposes,
operations and activities are organized and reported by department. The segments of the Corporation and
the services provided by each are as follows:

«  Governance - handles the finances and administration including support to the Board and all other
departments. The department provides internal support and central services to ensure the efficient and
effective operation of the Tribal Council;

«  Education - includes all second level services and direct services for the member first nation schools;

¢  Economic Development and Training - includes CEDO funds, CEOP projects, Pre-employment Support
Program and aboriginal skills and employment training initiatives to member First Nations;

(10}
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Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.

Motes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

« Infrastructure Services - includes advisory services to member first nations in the areas of housing,
infrastructure, water treatment and facility maintenance;

«  Justice - includes community justice initiatives; and

#  Other - includes a variety of other programs including recreation and special projects.

For each segment separately reported, the segment revenue and expenses represent both amounts that are
directly attributable to the segment. Administration transfers represent internal cost sharing charges that

are allocated on a reasonable basis. The presentation by segment is based on the same accounting policies as
described in note 2. Segment results are as follows:

(11)
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STC HEALTH AND FAMILY SERVICES INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2024
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

duly 7, 2025

The aceompanying linanckl stitements of STC Health & Family Sardces Tne are the responsibility of
management and have been approved by Board of Directors.

The finapcial staiements have been prepaned by management In accordance with Canadian public sector
acenunling Slandands prewsnlead for governments a3 recommendad by the Public Sscior Accounting Board
ani ax such inclode amounts that are the best estimates and judzments of management.

Management s responsible for the integrity and objectivity of these statements and for implementing and
miaintzining a system of internal controls to provide reasonsble sssurance thai reliable Auancial
information i produced.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for linancial
meporting and internal control azd i ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the financias)
statements

The Board of Directors meets pecodically with management, as well as the external auditors, fo disrnes
internal controls over the financial ing process, niditing matters and Gnancial reporting isses, w0
ﬂ&&tbﬁu&m&hlmﬁmﬂhmﬁﬂydﬁ@mm responsibifities, and b0 roview the fnapcial
statements and the external auditor's repon.

The esternal anditors, B0 Cansda LLP, condict dn independent examinating, in seordatios with
Canadien suditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements, The external auditors
have full and free access to fAnancisl management of STC Health & Family Ssrviees [ne. anid ment when
required

(EM\

Shantelle Watson
Chiiel Exoculive Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Directors of 5TC Health & Family Services Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statemeants of 5TC Health & Family Services Inc. (the Corporation), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2024, and the statements of changes in net
debt, statement of operations, and statement of cash Mows for the year then ended, and notes to the
finaneial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.,

In our opinion, the accompanying linancial statements present faitly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Carporation as at March 31, 2024, and its results of operations, its measurement
gamns and losses, L5 change in nel debt, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accaunting standards,

Basis for Opinian

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of ouwr report. We are independent of the Corporation in
accondance With the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far
owr opinien.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management 5 responsible for the preparation and fajr presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation af financial statements Lhat are free
from material misstatement, whethar due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation’s ability
to conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and wsipg the
going concern basis of accounting unless management efther intends to liguidate the Corporation or to
cease pperations, or has no realistic alternative but to da so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corparation’s financial reporting
Process.

Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free (rom matenal misstabement, whether due to fraud or error, and to i55ue an auditor’s repart that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecanomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

a5 part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted avditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain prafessional skepticism throughout the audit, 'We alsa;

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due te
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtain awdit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for aur opinion. The risk of not detecting
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IBDO

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the aoverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

BDQO Canada [LF
Chartered Professional Accountants

Saskatoon, Saskatchewan
July 7, 2025
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STC Health & Family Services Ine.

Statement of Financtal Position
A al March 31, 2024
2024 2023
5 5
Financial Assais
Cazh 28,067 258 448,152 081
Accounts ecaivable (note 31 9520 557 2,356 314
Due From retated parties (nofe 5) 10 ThS 485 3844 EEE
aB 474 301 35252081
Financial Liabilities
Azoounts payable 12210213 9.4568,005 |
Azcyuid HAbbes 261 429 251,161
Defesrrea revanue (noke B) A7 145439 27,496 122
Dz 1o related parties indte 5) 1,E23 80T 1615600
51,445,553 39,028 683
MNet Debt (2,972.662) [3.775,827}
Mon-Financial Assels
Prepaid expanses 51,512 235284
Diue from relalad parbes (nota 5) 2 457 201 2 A57 201
Tangible capial assels (nota 4 1,844,152 2171883
4 457 BES 4 B55 452
Accumulated Surplus 1,480,204 1,052 655

Commitments and contingencies (note 10)

by the Board of Directors

T st pa iy aingg ot aie i integral peare of these Naanclal satamants,
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Statement of Changes in Net Debt
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Budget 2024 2023
$ $ $

Surplus of revenue over expenditures for
the year - 380,548 445 458
Amortization of tangible capital assets (note 4) - 244 771 147 238
Net change in prepaid expenses - 184,785 {77,052)
Furchase of tangible capital assets - (16,940) (235,816)
- 412 616 (165,630)
Change in net debt - 803,185 280,826
MNet debt — Beginning of year (3,775,827) {3,775,827) {4,056,653)
Net debt — End of year (3,775,827) (2,972,662 (3,775,827)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Statement of Operations
For the yvear ended March 31, 2024

Budget 2024 2023
3 5 s
Revenue
Indigenaus Services Canada (FNIHB) 17,661,299 21,721,072 14,563,711
Indigenous Services Canada (CIRNAC) 24,692 276 18,822,391 16,779,013
Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc. (note 5) 317,082 635,199 388,720
Saskalchewan Health Authority (SHA) 377622 471,005 451,345
Health Canada 1,357,483 1,357,553 1,259,004
Ministry of Social Services 565,789 1,015,238 414 739
Other revenue 250,000 500,182 308,449
Public Health Agency of Canada (PHAC) 176,325 159,230 118,839
Donations S 126,250 176,283
Building Bridges for the Fulure Saskatoon Inc. (note 5) - - 46,430
Imerest income - 1,269,772 945,834
STC Urban First Mations Services Inc. (note 5) - - 30,000
Federation of Sovergign Indigenous Mations (FSIM) 340,255 156,481 255,492
45 738,141 46,234,383 35,738,859
Expenditures (notes 5 and 7)
Progressive Model 24 692,276 20,528,846 18,010,966
Health Services 15,893,152 17,164,357 9,508,837
Health Cperations 4,079,903 7,210,671 6,478,145
Meedle Exchange and FMARF Project 579,383 266,725 445 456
PHAC Project 176,325 144,389 350,907
Family Violence and Emergency Management 317,092 528,846 498,002
45 736,141 45 843834 35,2482 403
Surplus of revenue over expenditures for the year - 390,549 A AED
Accumulated surplus — Beginning of year 1,089,655 1,089,655 €4%.199
Accumulated surplus — End of year 1,088,655 1,480,204 84555

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities
Surplus of revenue over expenditures for the year
Iterns not affecting cash

Amorization (note 4)

Met change in non-cash working capital items
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Acorued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Due to related parlies
Prepaid expenses
Due from related parlies

Investing activities
Furchase of tangible capital assets (note 4)

Change in cash during the year
Cash - Beginning of year

Cash — End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024 2023
-3 -3
390,549 446,456
244,771 147,238
635,320 593,694
(7,364,244) (1,191,016)
2,744,213 2,334 675
10,338 (63,953)
9,650,317 6,491,933
13,207 1,306,106
184,785 (77.052)
(6.941,799) (3.277.,200)
(1,703,183) 5,523,484
(1,067,863) 6,117,178
(16,940) (235 816)
(1,084,803) 5,881,362
29,152,061 23,270,699
28,067,258 29,152 061
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

1 Description of operations

STC Health & Family Services Inc. (the Corporation) has been established to operate a child protection agency
and to provide support and related social services to the Kinistin, Mistawasis Nehiyawak, Muskeg Lake,
Muskoday, One Armmow, Whitecap Dakota and Yellow Quill First Nations.

The Corporation was incorporated in September 1995, under the Canada Corporations Act as a not-for-profit
corporation and remained inactive until April 1, 1998, at which time operations commenced. Beginning April 1.
2002, the Corporation expanded to include various health programs that had been operated by Saskatoon Tribal
Council Ine. The Corporation is not subject to income tax under the provisions of paragraph 149(1)(d.5) of the
Income Tax Act.

2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles for government, as defined in the Public Sector Accounting Standards as issued by the Public Sector
Accounting Board and include the following significant accounting policies.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards (P3AS)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expensss during the vear. Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of
preparation of the financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes
available. Significant items subject to estimates and assumptions include: the valuation of accounts receivable
and due from relates parties. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurmed that gave rise to the revenies.
All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable
degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.

Government transfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authorized and any eligibility criteria are
met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability.
Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give nise to a liability. Transfer revenue
iz recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Contributions from other sources are deferred when restrctions are placed on their use by the contribator, and
are recognized as revenue when used for the specific purpose,

Revenve related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the serice is performed is
deferred and recognized when the fee is camed or service performed.

Al
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

Cash

Cash includes cash on hand. balances with banks net of bank overdrafis and term deposits having a maturity of
three months or less at acquisition, which are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

Employee benefit plans

The Corporation participates in a defined contribution pension plan for eligible emplovees. Under the defined
contribution plan, the Corporation’s obligations are limited toits contributions. The pension costs are charged to
operations as contributions are due and payable.

The obligations for vacation pay and banked time in lieu of overtime have been accounted for at an undiscounted
value at the curment rate of pay.

Tangible capital assets and amortization

The costs of the tangible capital assets are recorded as additions to tangible capital azsets and the related funding
is recorded as deferred revenue in the year of acquisition.

Tangible capital assets and the related funding are amortized to operations over their expected useful lives using

the following rates:
Computer equipment and software 30% = 100% declining balance
Office fumiture and equipment 5 years straight line
Buildings 4% declining balance
Vehicles 5-10 years straight line

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to the
Corporation’s ability to provide goods and services or when the value of future economic benefits associated with
tangible capital assets is less than its net book value.

Finaneial instruments

The Corporation initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value, except for certain
instruments originated or acquired in related party transactions. The Corporation subsequently measures all its
financial assets and financial labilities at amortized cost, except for equity investments quoted in active markets
and derivative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value, Changes in fair value are recognized in
net income.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable and due

from related parties. Financial Rabilities measured at amortized cost include aceounts pavable and acerued
liabilities and due to related pariies.

(2]
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

Transaction costs on financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost are adjusted against the carrving
value of the related asset or lability and then recognized over the expected life of the instrument using the
straight-line method. Transaction costs on equity investments quoted in active markets are recognized
immediately in the statement of operations.

At the end of each reporting period. the Corporation assesses whether there are any indications that a financial
asset measured at amortized cost may be impaired. If there are indicators of impairment, and the Corporation
determines there has been a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future cash flows,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to the higher of the expected cash flows expected 1o be generated by
holding the asset, discounted using a current market rate of interest, and the amount that could be realized by
selling the asset at the statement of financial position date.

3 Accounts receivable

2024 2023
5 5

Program receivables from funders 9,600,633 2,133,369
GST receivable 25841 82,759
Other receivables 4,883 50,986

9,631,357 2267114
Allowance for doubtful accounts (10,800} {10,800}

9,620,557 2,256,314

(3]
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2024

4 Tangible capital assets

Cost

Beginning of year

Additions

End of year

Accumulated amortization
Beginning of year
Amonization

End of year

Cost

Beginning of year

Additions

End of year

Accumulated amortization
Beginning of year
Amortization

End of year

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

Computer Office
equipment furniture
and and

software equipment Buildings Vehicles 2024

5 5 5 3 5

579,003 75626 1872615 741,003 3,268 247

- - - 16,940 16,940

579,003 75625 1872615 757,943 3285187

579,003 63,879 202166 161,216 1,006 264

- 3162 11,685 229 924 244,771

579,003 67.041 303,851 381.140 1,341,035

- BS85  1,588.764 366,803 1,944,152
Computer Office
equipment furniture
and and

software  equipment Buildings Vehicles 2023

5 -1 7 -1 $

579,003 64215 1872615 516,598 3,032 431

- 11,411 = 224 405 235816

579,003 75626 1872615 741,003 3,268,247

579,003 B2200 226313 81,510 949,028

- 1,679 65.853 79.706 147.238

579.003 63.879 292,166 161.216 1,006,264

- 11,747 1,580,449 579.787 2.171.983

(4]
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

5 Related party transactions

Included in due from related parties is an amount of $1.375.074 (2023 - $1,401,298) that is receivable from
Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc., of which $1,271,003 pertains to funding transferred as a result of the transfer of
health operations from the Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc. to the Corporation. This amount is without interest and
specific repayment lerms.

During the vear, the Corporation paid administration fees, office rent, occupancy costs and other costs to
Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc., a corporation under common control, in the amount of 5827885 (2023 -
S966,013). At vear-end, due to related parties included an amount of 51,385,755 (2023 - $1.457,715) that is
pavable to Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc. These amounts are without interest and specific repayvment terms.

Included in due from related parties is an amount of $8,432.881 (2023 - $3.334.591) that is due from STC Urban
First Nations Services Inc., a corporation under common control. The amounts pertain to advances made by the
Corporation to fund STC Urban First Nations Services Inc. operations.

The Corporation paid supplies and services to STC Urban First Nation Senvices Inc. during the vear of $nil (2023
- £329.057). Al vear-end. due to related parties included an amount of $412,.515 (2023 — $346.363) thal is pavable
to STC Urban First Nations Services Inc. These amounts are without interest and specific repayment terms.

The Corporation paid for material and supplies and other costs to Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
during the vear of $nil (2023 - £7.586) and received funding for programs in the amount of $nil (2023 - $40,340).
Included in due from related parties is an amount of 53,726,473 (2023 - $1.539,650) that is due from Building
Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc., a corporation under common control. The amount pertains to funding
owed for program operations.

At vear-end, due to related parties included an amount of 530,537 (2023 — $10,026) that is payable to Building
Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc. These amounts are without interest and specific repayment terms.

(5]
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

6 Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue consists of unexpended Health and Family Services funding relating to future program
expenditures. These amounts relate to Health Canada, Indigenous Services Canada and other funding sources.

March 31, Revenue Revenue March 3,

2023 deferred  recognition Transfer 2024

-] 5 -1 1 5

Indigenous Senices Canada 16,900,419 10,815,124 (3.710,533) - 24,005,010

Other 1.470,860 678,820 - - 2,149,780

Total — Progressive Model 18,371,379 11,493,944 (3,710,533) = 26,154,790

Indigenous Services Canada 9,024,776 S519.117 (3.798.858) - 10,745,035

Other 99 967 342,536 (195.889) = 246614
Tolal = Health and Social

Development 9,124,743 5,861,653 (3,994,747) - 10,981,649

Total deferred revenue 27496122 17,355,597 {7.705,280) - 37,146,438

March 31, Revenue Revenue March 31,

2022 deferred recognition Transfer 2023

5 ] 5 ] s

Indigenous Semnices Canada 12,451,200 24224 527  (19,769,308) {6,000y 16900419

Other 1,470,960 - - - 1,470,960

Total - Progressive Model 13,922 160 24224 527  (19.769.308) (6,000) 18371379

Indigenous Services Canada 6,955,334 18,250,035 (16,186,593) 6,000 9,024,776

Other 126,695 180,828 {207 556) = &9,.967
Tolal - Health and Social

Developmeni 7.082.029 18.430.863  (16.394.149) &,000 9,124,743

Total deferred revenue 21,004,189 42855390 (36163457 - 27.496.122

(6)
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31. z024

7  Expenditures by object

2024 2023
$ 5

Community payments 23146122 20919120
Salary and wages 6,940,320 6,088,532
Supplies and materials (note 5) 8.765.245 3.336.402
Consultants 2628762 1,368,938
Staff benefits (note 9) 1,103,585 950,663
Renl and insurance (note 5) 696,045 BBB,172
Travel and per diem 376,700 186,544
Accounting and legal 339,440 130,424
Conference and meelings 314,069 208 405
Vehicle 262 862 208,494
Amortization 244.TM 147,238
Repaws and maintenance 235,000 126,644
Administration fees (nole 5) 172,305 93,609
Miscellaneous (nole 5) 161,348 226 221
Telephone and IT 143,907 349 881
Office supplies 122,487 42 483
Training and professional development 105,516 154 555
Bank charges and inferest 32,394 22016
Honorarium 26.872 18,447
Advertising and recruitment 26,074 45615

45,843,834 35,292,403

8 Risk management

The Corporation’s financial instruments expose it to a variety of financial risks. There have been no changes in
these nisks from prior vear.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Corporation to credit risk consist
prancipally of cash, accounts receivable and due from related parties.

The Corporation’s cash is maintained at major financial institutions; therefore, the Corporation considers the risk
of non-performance of these instruments to be remote.

As at March 31, 2024 the following financial assets were past due but not impaired:

(7
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2024
Over 120
30 days &0 days 90 days days
Trade receivables 404 422 306 958 343.286 5,743,036

All other financial assets were not past due.

The majority of the Corporation’s due from related parties are due from related parties that have sufficient cash
to pay the balances, while accounts receivable are primarily due from various levels of government and as such
collection is reasonably assured. The Corporation believes the credit risk related to these receivables is low.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come due.
Liquidity risk also includes the risk of not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner at a reasonable price.
The Corporation is exposed to liquidity risk as a result of being economically dependent on funding from
Indigenous Services Canada. The Corporation’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it has sufficient
cash flows available to fund its operations and to meet its obligations when due, under both normal and stressed
circumstances.

The Corporation maintains an authorized line of credit of $500,000, of which $nil was drawn on as at March 31,
2024. Interest on outstanding credit is calculated at the financial institutions prime rate. The line of credit is
secured by the Corporation’s funding agreement with Indigenous Services Canada.

The following table outlines the contractual maturity analysis of the financial liabilities as at March 31, 2024:

2025 2026 2027 + Total
Due to related panies 1,828,807 - = 1,828,807
Accounis payable 12.210.218 - - 12.210.218
14,039,025 - - 14,039,025

Market risk

Market risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises the three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk. The Corporation is not exposed to any of these rsks,

g9 Pension plan
The Corporation provided a defined contribution plan for eligible members of its staff. Members are required to
contribute a portion of their salary, with the Corporation matching a portion of this contribution. The pension

expense in the current vear was $208,321 (2023 = $180,605). The benefits acerued to the Corporation’s
emplovees are calculated based upon salary, vears of service and employment level.

(8]
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

10 Commitments and contingencies

The Corporation is awaiting a decision from Indigenous Services Canada (15C) regarding the results of a financial
review of the 2013 and 2014 fiscal years. These discussions will determine the amount of funding received. if any,
that is repavable by the Corporation to 1SC. Amounts repavable may result from accumulated deferred
(unexpended) revenves (balance reviewed under discussion - $4,419,726), and from ineligible/unsupported
expenditures (balance reviewed under discussion = $547,042). While the potential outcome is not determinable
at this ime, management estimates that the eventual resolution will not result in a significant impact to the
financial position or operations.

The Corporation has entered into contribution agreements with various federal and provincial government
departments. Funding received under these contribution agreements is subject to repayment if the Corporation
fails to comply with the terms and conditions of the agreements.

11 Budgeted figures

Unaudited budgeted figures have been provided for comparison purposes and have been derived from the
estimates approved by the Board of Directors.

12 Segment disclosure

The Corporation provides a range of services to its members. For management reporting purposes, operations
and activities are organized and reported by department. The segments of the Corporation and the services
provided by each are as follows:

»  Progressive Model — Includes programs to assist the STC Member First Nation communities in providing
culturally sensitive child and family services to families in need and also provides protection and well-being
for children.

» Health and 3ocial Development — Includes all aspects of community and public health and well-being
including: Health Promotion, Disease Prevention, Home & Community Care, Emvironmental Health,
Addiction Services, Mental Health, Child, Youth and Family Services. The Corporation provides suppori
services through local health and social development authorities and through direct clinical supervision to
fromt-line staff.

(9]
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STC Health & Family Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31. z024

For each segment separately reported, the segment revenue and expenses represent both amounts that are
directly attributable to the segment and amounts that are allocated on a reasonable basis. The presentation by
segment is based on the same accounting policies as described in the significant accounting policies. Segment
results are as follows:

Health and Social

Progressive Model Development
2024 2023 2024 2023

s -] 3 - 1
Revenue
Indigenous Services Canada (FNIHB) - . 21721072 14,563,711
Indigenous Services Canada (CIRMAC) 18,822 391 16,779,013 - -
Federation of Sovereign Indigenous Nations - - 156,41 255,492
Saskatchewan Health Authorty (SHA) - - 471,005 342,742
Saskatoon Tnbal Council Inc. (note 5) - - 635,199 389,720
Ministry of Social Services 1,015.238 414,739 - -
Health Canada - - 1,357,553 1,259,004
Interest 630482 484 480 639 290 451,354
Public Health Agency of Canada - - 159,230 118,839
Other 114,473 3337 511,959 335,994

20582 584 18.012,003 25651799 17.726.856

Expenditures
Salary and benefits 2971234 2903 365 4963452 3,964,940
Program costs 1,680,749 643,128 816,772 645,600
Community payments 11655998 110580186 11489901 976207
Maintenance payments — Children in Care 2,834,379 1,466,979 - =
Rent and insurance 313,715 260,752 382,330 480,020
Program suppons and supplies 183,524 464 568 6,748,088 1,773,341
Administration fees - 100,000 22 304 (6,391)
Other BEZ112 1,115,459 £89.276 B60.609

20,531,711 18.012.267 25312123 17.280,136

Surplus of revenue over expenditures for
the year 30873 (284) 339,676 446,720

{10)
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Docusign Envelope |D: EZEE44D5-6C98-40C6-8414-FADZEB161BCA

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

February 26, 2025

The accompanying financial statements of STC Urban First Nations Services Inc. are the
responsibility of management and have been approved by the Board of Directors.

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards prescribed for governments as recommended by the Public Sector
Accounting Board and as such include amounts that are the best estimates and judgments of
management.

Management is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements and for
implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that
reliable financial information is produced.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving
the financial statements.

The Board of Directors meets periodically with management, as well as the external auditors, to
discuss internal controls over the financial reporting process, auditing matters and financial
reporting issues, to satisfy themselves that each party is properly discharging their
responsibilities, and to review the financial statements and the external auditor’s report.

The external auditors, BDO Canada LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance
with Canadian auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements. The
external auditors have full and free access to financial management of STC Urban First Nations
Services Inc. and meet when required.

DocuSigned by:
Sleantelle Watson.
EFEMBAIOANTASF

Shantelle Watson
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Directors of STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the financlal statements of STC Urban First Mation Service Inc. (the Corporation),
which comprise the statement of linancial position as at March 31, 2024, and the statements of
changes in fund balances, operations, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 1o the
financial statements, ncluding & summary of sigmlicant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying flinancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
tinancial position of the Corporation as at March 31, 2024 and its results of operations and its cash
fliows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinian

We conducted our sudit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Qur
resporsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Fingrcial Statements section of our report. We are independent af the Corporation
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to owr audit of the financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respansibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatian of these financial statements
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
mianagement determines Is necessany 1o enable the préparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fravd or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation’s
ability to conlinue as a goli concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related Lo golng concern
and using the going concern bask of accounting unless management elther intends to liquidate the
Corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s linancial
reparting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Ouwr objectives are Lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free Trom material misstatemant, whether dee to fraud or error, and to fssue an auditor’s
report that includes our oplnion, Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance, but s not a
guarantee that an audit conducted In accardance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when It exists, Misstatements can arise Trom
fraud or error and are considered materfal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of osers taken on the basis of these lnancial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of interpal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to
continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

BDO Conada LLF

Chartered Professional Accountants

Saskatoon, Saskatchewan
February 27, 2025
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.
Starement of Financial Position

Asat Mureh g1, 202g
2024 2023
Tangible
capital
ﬂpmmg assot Reserve
fun fund fund Total Total
$ 5 5 5 5
Assets
Current assels
Cash (notes B and 10) b 140,285 : &T0012 8810207 3577580
Due fram opeating fund 3 48114 80 A0S 137 ROA INIM5
Due (o funds (137 808) - = (137606) (373815
Aecounts recetvable (note 3) 1517037 . = 1517037 1462535
Dhue Proven rmlsled poibes (note 4) 881570 - - 1BI157894 1,888,150
Prapaid expenses 226,002 -  2x00 218,840
11551310 48118 T58 706 12 3G9 120 T46 006
Tangible capital assets nole 5 L 7es20em - ZE52088 2 24R38%

11581310 2700183 758.708 15021180 £631.902

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Current liabilities
Accounis payabls (nofe 4) 1,040 285 4 - 1040989 1,126 260
Chie to redaled partes (nole 4) 10,702,184 = - 10,702,184 570005
Accried holiday pay 6T 172 - - =T a72 M543
Current partion of long-tefm debt (nods 6) - 768 265 - TB8, 265 798,773
Daferned revenue (nole 7) 2 161,643 - = 2161942 1453551
14 362 267 788 285 = 15030 582 8022930
Long-term debl (ngie 81 . 203 768 . 203,765 237227
14 262297 972034 -~ 15234331 9280157
Fund balances
I gmstiedt i Banaible Capital astete - 1,728,748 -~ 1,728,140 1,447 296
Extomady resticied (nafe 100 - - 58,706 TEET0E 1048709
Unresmesd _|2.700,987) z = (2T0098T) (2120260
(2700987) 1.728148 TS50.708  (213132) 371,745
11581310 2,700,183 TSO.706 16021189 9631 802
Contingent liablilties (note 14)

Am:rmwd by the Board t:?u:l
Director

Thunmnuw:m: olew ane nlr-l.ml mnnlthuellnmul sl nie

Mirector

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL 79 2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023

Tangible

capital

Operating asset Reserve
fund fund fund Total Total
5 s s g g
Fund balances — Beginning of year  (2,120,260) 1,582,899 909,108 371.745 32,717
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over

expenses for the year (360,494) i74,983) (148 4007 (584 877) 339,028
Inter-fund transfers (note 9) (220,233) 220,233 - - -
Fund balances — End of year (2, 700,987) 1,728,149 759,706 {213,132) 371,745

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Statement of Operations
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
Tangible
Operati ca Reserve
ﬁl":g asset fund Total Total
£ 5 3
Revenue
Ministry of Social Sendces 7979933 - 23613 8,003,546 7.762,723
Housing Corporation 5,342 804 157,795 - 5,500,599 3710728
Irvdian Institute of
Technologies 2,804 452 - - 2,804 452 3853991
Ministry of Comections, Public Safety
and Policing 1,625,108 - - 1,625,108 683,640
Sackatoon Housing Iniiatives Partnerchip 1,338,261 1,338,261 -
Ministry of Education 704,234 - - 704,234 512,662
Regional Health Authority 568,181 - - 568,181 490,093
Public Heafth Agency of Canada 471887 = = 471 667 671,555
Donations and other 294 500 - - 294 500 222 081
Ministry of Jusfice 289,707 = = 260,707 257 434
artment of Justice Canada 227574 - - 227574 245,844
Ministry of Immigration and Career
Training 199,800 - - 199,800 425,875
Daycare fees 175,255 - - 175,299 185,823
Rent (note 4) 142,740 - - 142,740 144 640
Ministry of Health 85,689 - = 85,689 116,667
STC Health & Family Serices [note 4) - - - - 258 309
23 X29.905 157,795 23613 Z2411.313 18,554 065
Expenses (notes 4 and 11)
Emergency Wellness Cenler 4958 476 - - 4 958 476 3741068
Employment and Training Services 2859420 - 11,636 2,871,056 3,526,337
Saweyihiotan 1,650,334 - - 1,650,334 371,014
Pewasayaw 1,523,238 - 12,754 1,535,992 1,566,526
Children’s Home 1,158 939 - 133,115 1,292 054 1,023,075
lleweskicik Iskwewak 1,043,805 - - 1,043,805 374,919
Daycare 877,153 - - 877,153 684 228
Massey Drive TE9170 - 1,453 800623 735,008
Melrose Avenue 763,803 = 8698 7r2sm 640,714
Safe House Refuge 797630 - 4332 761,962 812,053
Priel Crescent 139,260 - 1,025 736,285 804,780
Kotawan 676,757 - - 676,757 -
Head Start Gad 947 - = 644 047 581 684
Family Services 620,590 - 620,590 758,347
Leask 531942 - - 531,942 531,633
Leadership 505,489 . . 505489 355484
Justice A — Altemative Measures 491,423 - - 491,423 428842
Kids First 455,855 - « 485,855 397293
Administration 403,380 - - 403,380 480,164
Justice E = Community Connections 308513 . . 308513 430 409
Amortization - 232,778 - 232,778 222413
Court Workers 177,300 - - 177,300 171,650
Emgployment and training — Mavigator 176,942 - - 176,042 335749
Employment and Traim;'g Partnershaps 155,078 - - 155,078 4910
Children First B5.404 - - 85404 89,728
105 Transportation 73,147 - . 73,147 57437
Avenue P Building 55218 - - 85218 17,363

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Statement of Operations ...confinued
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Crikcinyalk Wikivwiing
Urban Family Sefvicas
SION & 2211 11th St W

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
expensas for the year

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

2024 2023
Tangible
Oparatl capital Resare
fl.l'rﬂ asset fund fund Taotal Taotal
$ $ $ §
32,588 32,588
9,800 9500 -
. 81,329
2 560399 232 778 173,013 22 aid, 190 18315 037
(350, 494) {74,983} (149,400 (584 87T) 339,028
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
$ s
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses for the year (584,871 330,028
Item not affecting cash
Armortization 232778 222 413
(352,093) 561.441
Changes in non-cash working capital items
Accounts receivable {54,501) {1.225,130)
Prepaid expenses (6,362) (1,605)
Accounts payable (85,271) 63,287
Accrued holiday pay 13,741 47 541
Due to reserve fund 236,107 101,811
Due from operating fund (236 .107) {(101.,811)
Deferred revenue 678,381 623,574
Due from related paries 72356 (1,341,041)
Due to related parties 431,289 835,287
697,534 {436, 648)
Investing activities
Furchase of tangible capital assets (400,951) (593,635)
Financing activities
Advances from related parties 5,000,000 2,000,000
Frincipal repayment of long-term debt (63 966) (60.897)

4,936 034 1,939,103

Change in cash during the year 5232617 a0, 822
Cash - Beginning of year 3,577 680 2,668,858
Cash — End of year 8,810,297 3.577.680

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

1 Description of operations

STC Urban First Nations Services Inc. (the Corporation) is comprised of the Whitecap Dakota, Kinistin,
Mistawasis Nehiyawak, Muskeg Lake, Muskoday, Yellow Quill and One Armow First Nations and operates under
written Principles of Agreement to provide a variety of services to improve the quality of life for Urban
Aboriginal people living in the City of Saskatoon. The Corporation was incorporated on June 28, 1994 under the
MNon-Profit Corporations Act, commenced operations on December 1. 1994 and is not subject to income tax
under the provisions of paragraph 149(1)(1) of the Income Tax Act (Canada).

2 Significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards (PSAS), including accounting standards that apply only to government not-for-profit organizations.

Fund accounting

The accounts of the Corporation are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting. For
financial reporting purposes, there are three funds, as follows:

i)  Operating fund
The operating fund reflects the primary operation of the Corporation, including revenues received

from government departments, billings to clients, the federal government and other agencies.
Expenses are for the delivery services.

i) Tangible capital asset fund
The tangible capital asset fund is an intermally restricted fund that reflects the equity of the
Corporation in capital assets after taking into consideration any associated long-term debt. The
capital fund includes revenves received from government departments designated for capital
improvements or additions and amorization expense.

iii) Reserve fund

The reserve fund is an externally restricted fund that reflects funds by the Ministry of Social Services
(MSS) for equipment and fumnishings and maintenance reserve. The assets include cash accumulated
by the Corporation from MSS funding, which is accounted for separately. Expenses are for repairs and
maintenance of the homes.

Inter-fund due toffrom funds are non-interest bearing and have no specific payment date.

()
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

Use of estimates

The preparation of the Corporation’s financial statements in conformity with PSAS requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include
the useful lives of tangible capital assets, allowance for doubtful accounts for accounts receivable and due from
related parties. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition

The Corporation follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions. Contributions are recorded
when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured. Restricted contributions related to general operations are recognized as revenue in the
operating fund in the vear in which the related eligibility criteria and stipulations, if any, are met. All other
restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate restricted fund.

Unrestricted revenue is recognized as revenue in the operating fund as it becomes receivable under the terms of
the applicable funding agreements. Funding received under the funding arrangements, which relates to a
subsequent fizcal period, is reflected as deferred revenue in the vear of receipt and classified as such on the
statement of financial position.

Dayveare fees, rent and other income are recognized as revenue in the operating fund when the senvice is
performed.

Contributed materials and services

Because of the difficulty in determining their fair value, only contributions of materials and services that can be
reliably valued are recognized in the financial statements. There are no contributed materials or services
recognized in the financial statements.

Employvee benefit plans

The Corporation participates in a defined contribution pension plan for eligible emplovees. Under the defined
contribution plan, the Corporation’s obligations are limited to its contributions. The pension costs are charged
to operations as contributions are due and payable.

The obligations for vacation pay and banked time in lieu of overtime have been accounted for at an
undiscounted value at the current rate of pay.

(2)
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Contributed tangible capital assets
are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over each
asset's estimated useful life as follows:

Land Indefinite
Buildings 20 years
Leased buildings Term of lease
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Office equipment and furniture 5 years
Computer equipment 3.33 years
Vehicles 5 years

Tangible capital assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrving value of an asset mav not contribute to the Corporation’s ability to provide goods and services. Any
impairment results in a write-down of the asset and an expense in the statement of operations. An impairment
loss is not reversed if the fair value of the related asset subsequently increases.

Financial instruments

The Corporation’s financial instruments consist of cash, due from related parties, accounts receivable, due to
related parties, accounts payable and acerued liabilities, accrued holiday pay and long-term debt.

A financial asset or a financial liability is initially recognized when the Corporation becomes a party tothe
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished.

The Corporation’s financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value. These financial instruments
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, net of any provisions for impairment, except for equity
investments quoted in active markets and derivative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognized in net income. Amortized cost is the amount at which a financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the camulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and minus any reduction for impairment.

At the end of each reporting period, the Corporation assesses whether there are any indications that a financial
asset measured at cost or amortized cost may be impaired. If there are indicators of impairment, and the
Corporation determines there has been a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future
cash flows, an impairment is recognized. For all financial assets the carmyving amount of the asset is reduced 1o
the higher of: the expected cash flows expected to be generated by holding the asset, discounted using a current
market rate of interest, the amount that could be realized by selling the asset at vear end, and the amount that
could be realized by exercising the Corporation’s right to any collateral held, net of all costs necessary to
exercise those rights.

If circumstances change, a previously recognized impairment may be reversed to the extent of the

improvement, provided the adjusted earrying amount is no greater than the amount that would have been
recognized if the impairment had not been recorded.

(a)
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

3  Accounts receivable

2024 2023
5 5
Trade receivables 313,527 163,680
Depariment of Justice 271,528 41,577
Ministry of Social Services 264 221 -
Ministry of Juslice — Saskalchewan 251,951 63,901
Saskatchewan Indian Training Assessment Group 78,272 118,940
Mmnistry of Immigration and Career Training 74,925 -
Public Health Agency of Canada 69,559 -
GST 62638 30,017
Saskatchewan Housing Initiative Parinership 62377 -
Saskatchewan Health Region 45,000
Saskatchewan Housing Corporation 12889 1.034.271
Ministry of Education 10,150 10,150
1,517,037 1,462 536

4 Related party transactions and balances

Related party transactions are recorded at the exchange amount agreed to by the related parties. All parties
noted below are related by common control of the Saskatoon Tribal Council member First Nations.

Other than items specifically disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements and notes, the following is a list of
significant related party transactions.

2024 2023
] $
Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.
Reni revenue 102,940 105,100
Program costs (note 11) 444 345,102
Rent and leases (note 11) 17,3848 18,498
Due from related parties 318,373 389,557
Due to related parties 1,575,699 1,589,142
STC Health & Family Services Inc.
Program costs (note 11) 16,741 107,556
Due from related parties 319,234 346,037
Due to related parties 8328019 3,287,715
Building Bridges of the Future Saskatoon Inc.
Rent revenue 12,000 36,000
Program costs (note 11) 1.975 380,035
Due from related parties 1,158,888 1,152,556
Due to related panies 743,578 380,720
Cress Housing Corporation
Maintenance, equipment and fumishings (note 11) 12,198 26,655
Rent and leases (note 11) 23,550 23,100
Due from related panies 19,299 -
Due to related parties 54 898 13328

(4)
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

5 Tangible capital assets

Gifice
Leasehold equipment Computer
Land Buildlng: h'nprmnt; mdfumltw: tqulpnm;r \I"nhlah; Total

5 ]
Cost
Beginning of year 13,200 3,515,051 1,803,415 743,671 379119 576132 7,120,588
Additions - 202,574 24,004 - - 174373 400951
Disposals - (139.678) - - - - (139.678)
End of year 13,200 3577947 1.917.419 743,671 379,119 750505 7.381.861
Accumulated
amortization

Beginning of year - 1,664,907 1,426,643 735,605 347282 4AG2165 4636602
Amortzation - 102,745 66,590 1,595 10,208 51542 232778
Disposals - {139,678) - . . - (139,678)
End of year - 1,627 975 1,493 242 737,290 357,578 S13. 707 4 729 792

13.200  1.949972 424 177 6,381 21541 236798 2652060

2023
Office
Leasehold equipment  Computer
Land  Buildings improvements and furniture equipment Vehicles Total
$ $ $ $ $ 5 $
Cost
Beginning of year 13,200 3,446,899 1,426 843 743.8T 370965 525575 6526953
Additions - 68,152 466,772 - 8154 50557 5038635
Disposals = = = = = = -
End of year 13,200 3.515.001 1.893.415 743,871 3re118 576132 7.120.588
Accumulated
anmortiz

Beginning of year - 1,508,785 1,428 843 733,038 325185 422830 4414279
Amortization 158,122 - 2859 22087 38535 222413
Disposals - - - - - - -
End of year - 1,664 807 1,426 643 735,695 47,282 462185 4636652

13,200 1,850,145 466 772 7976 31,837 1139686 2483896

Gross amount of leased tangible capital assets is $640,000 (2023 - $649,900), with accumulated amortization
of $454,930 (2023 - $422.435) and yearly amortization of $32,495 (2023 - $32,495) which all relates to the
building category.

Included within leasehold improvements is $24,004 (2023 - $466,772) of work-in-progress related to capital
improvements that were not amortized. Work-in-progress will not be amortized until the assets go into use.

(5}
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

6 Long-term debt

2024 2023
5 5
First Nations Bank of Canada term loan; repayable in monthly
blended payments of principal and interes! of $4,245, at a fied
interest rate of 4 90%, maturing on January 1, 2026 with no
repayment terms; building has been pledged as collateral with a
carmying value of 5700,000 581,903 603,659
Capital lease agreemen! with the Board of Educalion of 51. Paul's
Roman Catholic Separate School Division Mo. 20; principal and
interest repayable quarterly at a floating interest rate of prime
plus 2% that &5 set every five years, currently set at 5%;
maturing on June 30, 2030 237624 269, 440
First Nations Bank of Canada term loan; repayable in monthly
blended payments of principal and interest of $1,512, at a fixed
interest rate of 4 90%, maturing on January 1, 2026 with no
repayment terms; building has been pledged as collateral with a
carrying value of 3227 465 152,507 162,801
872,034 1,036,000
Less: Current portion of long-term debt (T68,265) (798,773)
203,769 237,227

The estimated principal payvments due in each of the next five vears and thereafter are as follows:

$
2025 67,731
2026 71,153
2027 74,749
2028 78,526
2029 B2 494
Thereafter 597,380

As at March 31, 2024, the Corporation was in violation of its Debt Senvice Coverage (DSC). As per the loan
agreement between the Corporation and First Nations Bank of Canada, the DSC is required to be greater than
1.10:1, as at March 31, 2024, it was negative 6.18:1.00 (2023 - 0.30:1.00). All debt outstanding with the First

Nations Bank of Canada has been classified as current as at March 31, 2024.

As at March 31, 2024, the Corporation had gross interest expenditures and payments for the period in the
amount of $36,820 (2023 - $38.833) on mortgaged properties and $12,554 (2023 - $14,116) on capital leases.

(6)

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL 89 2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

= Deferred revenue

Balance -
Beginning of Amount Amount
year recognized deferred Balance -
$ -] $ End of year §
Public Health Agency of
Canada - IELCC Flex
Funding 5,538 - - 5538
Public Health Agency of
Canada - Aboriginal
Headstart 127947 {127.947) 158,023 158,023
Ministry of Social Services -
Homes 362,756 - 392,508 755,264
Saskatchewan Health
Authority - Kids First 106,440 - 65,558 171,988
Ministry of Comections, Public
Safety and Policing -
Justice A — Allemaltive
Measurnes 385,263 - 22 060 407 323
Ministry of Comections, Public
Safety and Policing -
Justice E - - 61,877 &1.877
Ministry of Justice — Count
Workers - - 5,750 5750
Ministry of Immigration and
Career Training -
Mavigator 9,033 . - 9,033
Ministry of Corrections, Public
Salety and Policing -
lkweskicik Iskwewak 452 292 . 452 292
Ikweskicik Iskwewak Mental
Health & Addictions - - 114,311 114,311
Saskatchewan Housing
Corporation —
Emergency Weliness
Cenire 34,292 {13,759) - 20.533
1.483.561 {141, 708) 820,087 2,161,942

8 Bank overdraft

The Corporation maintains an authorized line of credit of $500,000. Interest on outstanding credit is calculated
at the financial institution’s prme rate and is due upon demand. As at March 31, 2024, the bank overdraft

utilized was Snil (2023 = Snil).
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

g Inter-fund transfers

Tangible capital assets purchases through
operating and reserve funds
Payment of principal portion of debt

Tangible capilal assets purchases through
operating and reserve funds
Payment of principal portion of debt

10 Externally restricted net assets

2024
Tangible
capital
Operating asset Reserve
fund fund fund Total
-] 5 5 -1
{155,760) 155,760 - -
(64.473) 64,473 - -
(220.233) 220233 - -
2023
Tangible
Capital
Qperating Asset Reserve
fund funds Fund Total
s 5 5 -1
(156,511} 156.511 - -
(60,898) 60,889 - -
(217.410) 217410 - -

Ministry of Social Services requires the Corporation to maintain a reserve for equipment, furnishing and

maintenance of the homes.

Balance -
Beginning of Reserve Reserve Balance —
year allocations expenditures End of year
-1 -1 -1 -1
Equipment and fumishings 466,002 15,759 (130,475) 6,276
Maimenance 788,114 7.854 (42,538) 753,430
809,106 23613 {(173,013) 750,708

At March 31, 2024 the Ministry of Social Services reserve fund was funded with $670,012 (2023 - $670,194) in
cash. The remainder of the fund balance is due from the operating fund.

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2029

Fublic Health Agency of Canada requires the Corporation to expend certain funds on tangible capital assets,

Balance - Externally Externally
Beginning of restricted restricted Balance -
year contributions expenditures End of year
] 5 -] §
Aboriginal Headstart Capital 135,002 - (86,888) 48,114

11 Expenses

2024 2023
5 s
Salaries 14 530679 10,843,191
Benefits 2,279,102 1,733,477
Special project payments 1,988,220 2,838,733
Program costs (note 4) 1130432 1,185,889
Community payments — Leask home 516,575 516,575
Rent and leases (note 4) 510,976 254 431
Maintenance, equipment and furnishings (note 4) 341,309 131,038
Amorization 232778 222413
Utilities 207,164 139,467
Telephone and information technology 129,927 38,140
Professional fees 121,197 69,216
Bank service charges and interest (note 6) 120,568 21,440
Elders 116,697 31,362
Office supplies 109,978 75442
Fumiture and equipment 109,263 230,519
Travel 106,729 49. 482
Janitorial 94,539 73,489
Insurance 83 468 54 837
Consulting and contracts 61.870 11,078
Program support {note 4) 45215 321,370
Professional development and training 43449 81,168
Adverising and promotion 31,706 47 182
Meetings and workshops 29,928 4898
Office 29824 26,871
Propery taxes 23,347 22 404
COVID-19 Supplies 230 28,727
22 996,190 19,215.037

12 Pension plan
The Corporation provided a defined contribution plan for eligible members of its staff. Members are required to
contribute a portion of their salary, with the Corporation matching a portion of this contribution. The pension

expense for the vear ended March 31, 2024 was $198,486 (2023 = $172,181). The benefits acerued to the
Corporation’s emplovees are calculated based on salary, vears of service and employment level,

(9)
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

13 Financial instruments and risk management
The Corporation’s financial instruments expose it 1o a variety of financial risks.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing

todischarge an obligation. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Corporation to credit risk consist
principally of cash, due from related parties and accounts receivable.

The Corporation’s cash is maintained at major financial institutions; therefore, the Corporation considers the
risk of non-performance of these instruments to be remote.

The majority of the Corporation’s due from related parties are due from related parties that have sufficient cash

to pay the balances, while accounts receivable are primarily due from various levels of government and as such
collection is reasonably assured. The Corporation believes the credit risk related to these receivables is low. The
Corporations’ maximum exposure to credit sk is the caming value of the financial assets.

As at March 31, 2024 the following financial assets were past due but not impaired:

Ower 120
30 days &0 days 90 days days
Trade receivables 7.559 23,728 21,023 486,307

All other financial assels were not past due.

The Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk for its financial instrument assets are the amounts
recorded on the statement of financial position plus any allowance recorded.

Liguidity risk

Licquidity risk is the risk the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come due.
Liquidity risk also includes the risk of not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner at a reasonable
price. The Corporation’s approach 1o managing liquidity is to ensure that it has suificient cash flows available to
fund its operations and to meet its obligations when due, under both normal and stressed conditions. The
Corporation is reliant on various funding agreements in order to sustain operations and has an authorized line
of eredit as described in note 8.

The following table outlines the contractual maturity analysis of the financial liabilities as at March 31, 2024:

2025 2026 Post 2026 Total
Due to related parnies 10,702,194 - . 10,702,194
Accounts payable & accruals 1,040,589 - - 1,040,989
Long term debl 113,848 113,848 1,091,476 1,319172
12.214.203 113.848 1,091.476 13.419.527
(1o}
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STC Urban First Nations Services Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

Market risk

Market risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will luctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: curmency rate risk, interest rate risk and
other price Ask. The Corporation is mainly exposed to interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument might be affected by a
change in the interest rate. Changes in market interest rates may have an effect on the cash flows associated
with some financial assets and liabilities. known as interest rate risk. and on the fair value of other financial
assets or liabilities, known as fair value risk. The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk as follows:

= line of credit (note 8) - floating interest rate; and
+« long-term debt (note 6) — fixed and floating interest rates.

To mitigate the interest rate, risk the Corporation enters fixed interest rate financial liabilities where possible.
The Corporation does not actively mitigate the fair value risk as the financial instruments are not managed
based upon their fair value. As the Corporation only incurred expenses related to its fixed interest rate long-
term debt and did not utilize its line of credit during the vear, the Corporation had minimal exposure to future
cash flow interest rate risk.

N

14 Contingent liabilities
The Corporation has entered into contribution agreements with various government departments. Funding

received under these contribution agreements is subject to repayment if the Corporation fails to comply with
the terms and conditions of the agreements.

{11
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

February 20, 2025

The accompanying financial statements of Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc. (O/A White
Buffalo Youth Lodge) are the responsibility of management and have been approved by the Board of
Directors.

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards prescribed for governments as recommended by the Public Sector
Accounting Board and as such include amounts that are the best estimates and judgments of
management.

Management is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements and for
implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that
reliable financial information is produced.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving the
financial statements.

The Board of Directors meets periodically with management, as well as the external auditors, to discuss
internal controls over the financial reporting process, auditing matters and financial reporting issues, to
satisfy themselves that each party is properly discharging their responsibilities, and to review the
financial statements and the external auditor’s report.

The external auditors, BDO Canada LLF, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with
Canadian auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements. The external
auditors have full and free access to financial management of Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon
Inc. (O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge) and meet when required.

DocuSigned by:

Sleantelle Watson

EFELIRA1MAITIIF

Shantelle Watson
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Directors of Bullding Bridges for the Futire Saskatoon Inc. (04 White Bulfalo Youth Lodge)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc. (O/4 White
Buffalo Youth Lodge) (the Corporation), which camprise the statement of financial position as at March
31, 2024, and the statement of changes in net deficil, statemenl of operations. and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes Lo the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accampanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation as at March 31, 2024, and Its results of operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted owr audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audirter's Responsibilities for the
Apdit of the Financiol Stotements section of our report. We are independent of the Corporation in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant (o our audit of the financial statements In
Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinian.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standsrds, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due ta fraud or emmor.

In preparing the financial stalements, management i5 responsible for assessing the Corparalion’s's ability
o continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Corporation or to
ceace operalions, or has na realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our pbjectives are Lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to fssue an auditor’s report that
includes owr opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepled auditing standards will always detect
a material misstaternent when it exists, Misstatements can arise Irom fraud or error and are comsidered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of wers taken on the basis of these financial statemenis.

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL 97 2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



IBDO

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understandineg of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the fipancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

BDQO Canada LLFP

Chartered Professional Accountants

Saskatoon, Saskatchewan
February 20, 2025
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Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Statement of Financial Position

Az ot March 31, 2014
1024 1023
] 5
hasels
Current asssts
Cash 1,131,354
Accounts receivabile inote 3) 1,860, 848 1,715,817
Dy from related parties (note 4) 1,.230.775 &10 577
Prepaid expen:es - V7,788
4,005,977 2,154 492
Tangible capital assels (nots 3§ 7 326,284
4,758,304 2,480,776
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank indebiednegss (note 7) z T1.¥3
Accounts payeble and acoruad liabilities 9% 430 364,910
Deferred revenie (nole &) B8, 304 20,461
Due Lo related parties (note 4) 4,354,841 2,556, 083
4,642,555 2,942,627
MNet deficit
Imvested in tangible capital assess 232,027 A6, 784
Unredtrictad nel deficll i616,618) (788,135)
[384,291) (461,851)
-‘Itl‘.il.]ﬂl 2. 480,776

Contingent liabilities inste 10

Approved by Lhe Board of Direcions

7
W, Director

/

Tha accompanying notos aré an Intagral part of thiss Naancial siatemeniL.
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Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Statement of Changes in Net Deficit
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
5 5
Unrestricted net deficit
Balance - Beginning of year {788,135) (305, 049)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year 77,560 (285,932)
Transfers to (from) imvested in tangible capital assets 93,957 {197,154)
Balance - End of year {616,618) {788,135)
2024 2023
s 5
Invested in tangible capital assets
Balance - Beginning of year 326,284 129,130
Transfers to (from) unrestricted net assets {93,957) 197,154
Balance - End of year 232,327 326,284

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Revenue

Indigenouws Services Canada (note &)

Saskatoon Howsing Initiatives Partnership (note 6)
Donations (note 6)

Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc. (note 4)

City of Saskatoon

Gord Downie & Chaine Wenjack Fund

United Way

Dakota Dunes Community Development Corporation {note 4)
Hutrien (note 6)

Interest income

Other grants

STC Urban First Nations Services Inc. (note 4)
Rent

Other income

Government of Canada

Sask Culture

Saskatchewan Housing Corporation

Expenditures

Salary and benefits (note 4)
Special events

Program supplies (note 4)
Amortization

Hutrition

Legal and audit

Program travel

Provision for allowance for doubtful accounts
Office supplies and materials
Program activities

Honoraria

Repairs and maintenance
Telephone

Insurance

Rent (note 4)

Program equipment
Contracted services

Bank charges and interest
Workshops and meetings

Professional development
Advertising

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2024 2023
H
782,788 707,176
346,252 1,266,165
352,929 293,919
147,955 580,774
131,000 125,979
112,564 .
95,000 65,000
78,760 37,847
62,933 109,301
48,439
33,833 60,418
24,880 490,754
22,408 31,075
20,195 19,208
16,647 -
10,339 -
- 1,655,473
2,286,922 5,443,089
1,318,392 3,950,295
259,018 185,326
90,630 486,277
93,957 64,965
82,145 458,987
54,514 22,522
41,533 75,313
35,158 -
32,7113 18,368
31,080 42,516
28,400 83,578
23,877 51,029
23,479 29,730
21,151 17,507
19,369 59,136
17,261 29,951
13,662 102,066
13,545 22,891
5,732 2,342
3,573 25,769
173 453
2,209,362 5,729,021
77,560 (285,932)
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Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2024

2024 2023
3 5
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures for the year TT.560 (285,932
Amaortization 93,957 64,965
1n,57 (220,967
Change in non-cash working capital balances
Accounts receivable 64,979 (867,036)
Prepaid expenses 17,788 {3,173)
Due from related parties (B22,898) {653,501)
Accounts payable {165,480) 51,566
Deferred revenue 67,843 {195, 382)
(666,251) {1,300,493)
Investing activities
Purchase of tangible capital assets - {262,119)
Financing activities
Change in due to related parties 1,798,778 1,588,116
Change in cash 1,132,527 23,504
Bank indebtedness - Beginning of year i1,173) 126,677)
Cash (Bank indebtedness) - End of year 1,131,354 {1,173}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

1 Mature of the business

Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc. (O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge) (the Corporation) was
established on February 24, 2010, as a charitable corporation under the Non-Profit Corporations Act of
Saskatchewan and is not subject to income tax under provisions of paragraph 149 of the Income Tax Act. The
Corporation provides social and educational services to the underprivileged in Saskatoon, Saskatchewan,
Canada.

2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards (P5AS), including accounting standards that apply only to not-for-profit organizations.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with P5AS, including accounting standards that apply
only to not-for-profit organizations, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These
estimates and assumptions are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the
financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes available.
Significant iterms subject to estimates and assumptions include: useful lives of tangible capital assets, the
valuation of accounts receivable and due from relates parties. Actual results could differ from those
estimates,

Revenue recognition

The Corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted contributions are
recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are
recognized as revenue when received or recefvable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Endowment contributions are recognized as direct increases
in net assets.

Revenues are recognized in the peried in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the
revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined
with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.

Rental income is recognized as revenue over the period that the rental occurs.

Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service performed is
deferred and recognized when the fee is earned, or service performed.

(1)
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Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

Contributed services

Contributed services are not recorded because of the difficulty of determining their fair value. Contributed
services are not recognized in the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks net of bank overdrafts and term
deposits having a maturity of three months or less at acquisition which are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments. When drawn bank overdrafts exceed the other components of cash and cash
equivalents, they are classified as a liability and called bank indebtedness.

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes the purchase price and other acquisition costs
such as installation costs, design and engineering fees, legal fees, survey costs, site preparation costs,
freight charges, transportation insurance costs and duties, less accumulated amortization or impairment. In
the year of addition, only half the amortization rate is taken. Amortization is provided on a straight-line
basis over each asset’s estimated wuseful life, as follows:

Vehicles 5 years
Computer equipment 3.33 years

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer contribute to the

Corporation’s ability to provide goods and services or when the value of future economic benefits associated
with tangible capital assets i less than their net book value.

Contributed capital assets are recorded into revenues at their fair value on the date of donation, except in
circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined, in which case they are recognized at
nominal value. Transfers of capital assets from related parties are recorded at carrying value.

Employee benefit plans

The Corporation participates in a defined contribution pension plan for eligible employees. Under the
defined contribution plan, the Corporation’s obligations are limited to its contributions. The pension costs
are charged to operations as contributions are due and payable.

The obligations for vacation pay and banked time in lieu of overtime have been accounted for at an
undiscounted value at the current rate of pay.

Financial instruments

A financial asset or a financial liability is initially recognized when the Corporation becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. A financial liability is derecognized when it is

(2)

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL 104 2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

extinguished. The Corporation initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value,
except for certain instruments originated or acquired in related party transactions. The Corporation
subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized cost, except for equity
investments quoted in active markets and derivative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognized in net income.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, accounts receivable and due from related parties.
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to
related parties.

Transaction costs on financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost are adjusted against the
carrying value of the related asset or liability and then recognized over the expected life of the instrument
using the effective interest method. Transaction costs on equity investments quoted in active markets are
recognized immediately in the statement of operations.

At the end of each reporting period, the Corporation assesses financial assets to determine whether there is
any objective evidence of impairment. If there are indicators of impairment, and the Corporation
determines there has been a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future cash
flows that has diminished in a manner that is other than temporary, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to the higher of the expected cash flows expected to be generated by holding the asset, discounted
using a current market rate of interest, and the amount that could be realized by selling the asset at the
statement of financial position date.

Het assets

The Corporation's financial statements are presented so as to highlight net assets as the measurement of
financial position. The net assets of the Corporation are determined by its liabilities less its assets.

3 Accounts receivable

2024 2023
1 $
Indigenows Services Canada 1,132,432 645,622
City of Saskatoon 330,000 124,000
Saskatchewan Howsing Initiatives Partnership 146,488 862,197
Other receivables 58,807 66,550
GST receivable 8,239 27,458
1,696,006 1,725,827
Allowance for doubtful accounts {35,158) -
1,660,848 1,725,827

(3)
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Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.

(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Motes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

4 Related party transactions

Related party transactions are recorded at the exchange amount agreed to by the related parties. All parties
noted below are related to the Corporation by virtue of common control by the Saskatoon Tribal Council
member First Nations. Other than items specifically disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements and

notes, the following s a list of significant related party balances:

STC Urban First Mation Services Inc.
Due from related party
Due to related party
Rent
Salaries and benefits

Program supplies

STC Health & Family Services Inc.
Due from related party
Due to related party
Salaries and benefits

Program supplies

Saskatoon Tribal Council Inc.
Due from related party
Due to related party
Salaries and benefits
Program supplies
Contracted services
Rent

Dakota Dunes Community Development Corporation

Due from related party

2024 2023

5 3
724,507 356,789
825,47 821,961
8,400 36,000
343,850 -
7,225 .
16,391 10,557
3,529,370 1,543,699
- 3,15

) 42,751
442,829 32,958
- 190,423

16,075

11,758

. 79,292

10,969 10,065
50,048 10,573

All amounts owing to/from related parties are unsecured, have no fixed repayment terms or stated interest

rate.

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

106

(4)

2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2024

5 Tangible capital assets

Computer
Vehicles equipment 2024 2023
5 5 5 5
Cost

Beginning of year 446,609 7,420 454,029 191,910
Additions . . . 262,119
End of year 446,609 7,420 454,029 454,029

Accumulated amortization
Beginning of year 126,632 1,113 127,745 62,780
Amortization 92,065 1,892 93,957 6d, 965
End of year 218,697 3,005 221,702 127,745
227.912 4,415 232,327 326,284

6 Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue consists entirely of contributions that are to be used to fund specific programming of the
Corporation.

Balance -
Beginning of Amount Balance - End
year Recognized deferred of year
$ $ $ $
Hutrien 12,334 12,334 - .
Saskatchewan Houwsing Initiatives
Partnership - Miskasowin 7,827 - “ 7,827
Whitecap Dakota First Hation 300 - - 300
Saskatchewan Housing Initiatives
Partnership - Yehicles . - 68,015 68,015
Sask Culture . - 12,162 12,162
20,461 12,334 80,177 88,304
(5)
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Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

7 Bank indebtedness

2024 2023

5 5

Cash 1,131,354 95,556
Bank overdraft . {96,729
1,131,354 (1,173)

8 Financial instruments and risk management
The Corporation’s financial instruments expose it to a variety of financial risks.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Corporation to credit
risk consist principally of cash, accounts receivable and due from related parties. The Corporation only
engages with known and reliable parties to manage its credit risk.

The Corporation’s cash is maintained at major financial institutions; therefore, the Corporation considers the
risk of non-performance of this instrument to be remote.

The majority of the Corporation’s due from related parties are due from related parties that have sufficient
cash to pay the balances, while accounts receivable are primarily due from various levels of government and
as such collection is reasonably assured. The Corporation believes the credit risk related to these receivables
is low.

As of March 31, 2024, the following financial assets were past due but not impaired:

Over 12
manths

Accounts receivable 782,659
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come
due, Liquidity risk also includes the risk of not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner at a
reasonable price. The Corporation is exposed to liquidity risk mainly with respect to its bank indebtedness,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and its due to related parties. The Corporation is reliant on various
funding agreements in order to sustain operations. The Corporation’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure that it has sufficient cash flows available to fund its operations and to meet its obligations when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions.

(6)
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Building Bridges for the Future Saskatoon Inc.
(O/A White Buffalo Youth Lodge)

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2024

The Corporation's financial liabflities all have contractual cashflows that are due within one year of the
current year end.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk. The Corporation is not material exposed to any of these risks.

9 Pension plan
The Corporation provided a defined contribution plan for eligible members of its staff. Members are required
to contribute a portion of their salary, with the Corporation matching a portion of this contribution. The
pension expense in the current year was $52,703 (2023 - $39,364). The benefits accrued to the Corporation’s
employees are calculated based on salary, years of service and employment level.

10 Contingent liabilities
The Corporation has entered into contribution agreements with various funders. Funding received under

these contribution agreements is subject to repayment if the Corporation fails to comply with the terms and
conditions of the agreements.

(7
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Cress Housing Corporation
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Cress Housing Cotporation (the “Organization”), which
compaise the stslement of financlal pasition as at December 31, 2073, and the statements of operations,
changes In nel assels and cash flows for the year then ended. and notes o the financlal stalemenis,
Including a summary of significant accounting palicles.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial slatements present fairly, In all material respects, the financial
position of the Organization as al December 31, 2023, and the results of Hs cperations and cash Nows lor
the year Ihen ended In accordance wilh the financial reparing provizions of Saction 10(2) of the mongage
agreement between the Organization and Canadian Mongage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) [Mthe
Morigage Agreement’).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted ouwr sudit in accordence with Canadian generslly accepled auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those stendards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiities for the Audlt of
the Finoncial Sigtemenis section of our repork We are independent of the Organization in accordance with
ethical requirements that are relevent io our audit of the finencial statements in Canada, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibifities in eccordance with these reguirements. We belisve that the audit
evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate 10 provite @ basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basls of Accounting and Restriction on Use

We draw attentlon to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes the pasis of accounting. The
financial statements are prepared Lo assist the Oiganization 1o comply with the financial reponing
provisions of Sectlon 10(2) of the Morigage Agreement. As a resull, the financial statements may not be
suitable for another purpose. Our report i3 Intended solely for the Directors of the Organization and CMHC
and should not be uted by parties other than the Directors of the Organization or CMHC. Our opinion is not
madified In respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these finencial statements In accordance with the
financial reporting provisions of Section Y0{2) of the Morigage Agreement, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessany to enable the preparation of inancial statements that are free from
material misstatement. whelher due W fravd or emor.

In preparing the financisl statements, management is responsible for assessing the Organization's ability 1o
continue as @ going concem, disclosing, 83 applicable, matiers releted fo gofng concem and using the
golng concemn basis of socounting unless management elther intends to lquldste the Organization o 1o
cease operations, or has no realistic akernative but to do so,

Thnose charged with govemnsnce ang responsible for oversesing the Organization's financial reporting
process.

{oontinues)

HED Broadway dve FI00  Gaskaloon, 3K - ETH 247 s b Ol it i ILE
1

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL 112 2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



Independent Auditor's Repor to the Board of Directors of Cress Housing Corporation (cantinuied)

Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectves are 1o oblaln reasonablo assurance about whethar the financlal statements as a2 whola &g
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or €rror, and to issue an auditor's reéport that includes
our opinlon. Reasonable assurance is & high |evel of assurance, but 15 not a guarantee that an audit
canducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepled suditing standards will always detect a
matarial misstatement whan it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror and are consldared
material if, individuaily or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic
decizions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

Az part of an oudll In accordance with Canadlan generally accepled suditing standands, we exercisa
professional judgment and maintain professionsl skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

» ldentify and assess the risks of materal misstatement af the financlal statemeants, whethier due to fraud
or erar, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that iz sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion. The sk of not detecting a matarkal
mizstatemeant resulting from fraud |5 highar than for one resulting from arror, 8s fraud may Invalve
collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ar the overide of intemal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal contred relevant to the audit 10 order ta design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstanoes, but not for tha purpose of expressing dan oplnion on the
affectiveness of the Craanization’s Intemal cantrol.

s Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the ressonableness of accounting
estimates and relsted disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audll ovidence obtaned, whother & material unconainty ckists ralated @ evenis or
condifions thal may cast significant doubt on the Qrganization’s ability to continue as a going concem,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw altention in our auditor's
repon to the reloted disclosures In the financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadeqguans, 10
modify our opinlon. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Organization to cease to
eonfinue as @ galng cancern,

« Evaluate the owerall prezentation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying trensaciions and events [n
A manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing af the audit and significant audit findinas. including any slanificant deficlencies In intemal cantral

thiat we identify during our audli
Lingard + Dreger

Sasketoon, Saskatchowan Chartered Professional Accountants
MNovember 28, 2024
HEL Broauway & @ 200 Sasunteon, 5K 57N JAa A0 2 10 Vi il e u&,
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2023
2023 2022
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 252,418 s 281,546
Accounts receivable (Note 4) 564,493 2,300,553
Prepaid expenses 173,557 199,052
Restricted
Cash (Tenant deposits) 48,087 49,049
Cash (CMHC) 1,484,506 1151152
Cash [Market) 678,898 839,368
Short-term investments ([CMHC] (Note 5) 11,405 657 12,302,060
14,607,656 17,922,780
RESTRICTED LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (CMHC) (Note 5) 1,499,497 -
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 21,262,265 21,450,459
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued labilities (Note 6) 4 o980 § 2034188
Deferred contributions - 2434
Prepaid rent 98,213 96 582
Tenant deposits 48,087 43,045
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) 455,544 548,443
1,583,724 2,849,396
LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 8) 1,750,779 1,888,619
3,334,503 4. 738015
MET ASSETS
SURPLUS (Schedwie 1) 521,853 1,034,121
REPLACEMENT RESERVE (Schedule 2) 15.2M2HM 15487200
INVESTED IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (Schedule 3) 18,241,791 18113903
24,034 915 34 535 224
$ 37360418 $ 39373239
CONTINGENT LIABILITY {Note 10)
LEASE COMMITMENTS [Mote 11)

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Director ) Director

Soe notes to the financial statements
3
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2023 2023
REVEMUE
Rental revenue $ 3266634 £ 2890556
Operating subsidy 1,996,792 1865920
Administrative recovery 12,751 139,758
Management and maintenance fee 76,174 63513
Capital project revenue 244,413 55,584
Grant funding 7,240 49,534
Laundry réevenue 5,018 6,220
Other 59,149 4,769
5,768,1TM1 5,075,854
EXPENSES
Administration - General 188,207 338808
Administration - Salaries, benefits and travel 907,800 864 347
Amortization 330,741 321561
Bad debis 174,904 B6.815
Bank charges 42,549 1,081
Committee meetings 89,21 3,108
Condao fees 47,903 38626
Insurance 248,927 196,698
Janiterial 88,300 2461
Morigage interest 99,273 108,473
Professional fees 99,959 25,282
Property taxes G402 03T
Rent 11,105 87,480
Repairs and maintenance 1,460,944 1.088.119
Replacement Reserve allocation 279,160 279,160
Security 43,458 46,242
Shop expenses 36,670 36,120
Site management 63,979 48478
Telephone 62,044 20,902
Tenant counselling 368,084 28151
Utilities 668,485 529,733
6,047,335 5,140,476
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES FROM OPERATIONS (279,164) (64.622)
OTHER ITEM
Owmer's allocation (233,104) (148.867)
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ (512268) $ (213489

See notes (o the financial statements
4
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Invested in
Replacement  Tangible
Surplus Reserve  Capital Assets 2023 2023

MET ASSETS -

BEGINNING OF YEAR $% 1034121 $ 15487200 $ 18113902 %$34,635224 $ 31455287
Deficiency of revenue

OvEr BXPEnses (512,268) - - (512,268) (213,489)
Replacement Reserve

allocation 279,160 279,160 279,960
Replacement Reserve

interest earned 36B,367 = 368,367 21761
Replacement Reserve

expenditures - (BE63,456) - (8563,456) (596,670)
Capital grant - 127,888 127,888 3,493,325
MNET ASSETS - END OF

YEAR 521,853 15,271,271 18,241,791 515 34,635,224

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

See notes to the financial statements
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficiency of revenue over expenses for the year $ (512268 35 (213489
tem not affecting cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 330,741 3,561
(1814,527) 108072
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable 1,536,060 (1.753.,138)
Prepaid exponses 25,495 (27 385)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,052,309) 1,655,992
Deferred contributions (21,134) 134
Prepaid rent 1,631 26,515
Tenant deposits (562) (15,012)
488,781 (91.894)
Cash fiow from operating activities 307,254 16,178
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of tangible capital assets (142,546) 3.729,262)
Purchase of restricted investments (12,784, 433) (1.662,703)
Disposal of restricted Investments 12,534,433 .662.703
Reimsested intenest (353,134) (210,960)
Cash flow from [used by) investing activities 254,320 (3.940,223)
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Repayment of long-term debt (330,739) 321,561
OTHER CASH FLOW ITEMS
Increase [decrease) in Replacement Reserve (215,929) {99,899)
Capital grant funding 127,888 3493325
(88,041) 3393426
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 142,794 (852.179)
CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 232,15 3.173.294
CASH - END OF YEAR 2 209 23115
CASH COMSISTS OF:
Cash £ 25248 & 281,546
Restricted
Cash (Tenant deposits) 48,087 49,049
Cash (CMHC) 1,484,506 1.151,152
____Cash (Market) 678,898 839368
$ 2463909 § 2321115

Soe notes to the financial statements
[
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
MHotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

Cress Housing Corporation (the Organizstion”) was incorporated February 24, 1984 and was
registered under the Soskatchewon MNon-Profit Corporations Act. The Organization commenced
acquiring single unit dwellings during July, 1984. The Organization now also acquires apartment
buildings and rents these units to qualifying tenants.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial reporting framework is prescribed by the opersting agreement with CMHC which
requires the financial statements to be prepared in accordance with the following policies:

Revenue recogniticn

The Organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Rental revenue is
recognized as revenue in the period in which R relates. Subsidies and unrestricted contributions are
recognized as revenue in the year received or receivable if the amount to be received can be
reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Restricted contributions are recognized as
revenue in the year in which the related expenses ane incurmed.

Iinterest eamed on the replacement resene investments is credited directly to the Replacement
Reserve.

Capital grants received from govemment and other organizations designated for the acquisition of
capital assets are recorded as direct increases to Invested in Capital Assets when the capital assets
are acquired.

Rental revenue is recognized over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Replacement Reserve

Under the terms of the agreement with CMHC, the Replacement Reserve accounts are to be credited
annually with interest and allocation of CMHC's subsidy to provide for major replacements 10 the rental
properties. The Replacement Reserve is funded by an annual change against eamings as opposed 1o
an appropriation of accumulated surpluses.

These funds along with accumulated interest must be held in a separate bank account andfor invested
only in accounts or instruments insured by the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation or as may
otherwise be approved by CMHC from time 1o time.

Appropriations to the Replacement Reserve totaling $279,160 (2022 - $279,160) were made during
the current year. Approved expenditures incumred in the year are charged directly to the Replacement
Reserve. As a result of this accounting practice, actual expenditures for replacement and maintenance
do not normally appear in the statement of operations.

Tangible capital assets and amortization

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amonization. In accordance with the
operating agreement with CMHC, amaortization is provided to the extent that the related mortgage
principal is retired during the year. Tangible capital assets that are not financed are not amortized for
accounting purposes.

Income taxes
The Organization qualifies as a tax exempt organization under section 149 of the Income Tax Act.
(continues)
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
MHotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fcontinued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks and short-lerm investments with maturities
of three months or less.

Financial instruments

The Organization initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair wvalue. It
subsequently measures all its financial assels and financial liabilities at amortized cost, except for
investments in equity instruments that are quoted in an active market, which are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognized in the statements of operations in the period incurred.

Financial assets subsequently measured at amortized cost include cash, restricted cash, restricted
investments and accounts receivable. Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost
include accounts payable and accrued liabilities, tenant deposits and long-term debt. The fair value of
the cash, restricted cash, restricted investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, and tenant deposits approximates their camying value due to their short-term nature.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the operating agreement requires
management to make estimates and assumplions that sffect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, any disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ
from those estimates. Significant estimates include, but are not limited to, the collectibility of accounts
recehrable.

Contributed services

Contributions in-kind are recorded at fair value for goods or services used in the nomal course of
operations that would otherwise have been purchased.

The Board of Directors are not compensated for their senvices provided to the Organization. The
Director fees are being paid for by a related Corporation.

3. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Organization receives a significant amount of its revenue from CMHC (2023 - 34.6%; 2022 -
36.7%) and is therefore dependent on continued funding from CMHC to fund its ongoing operations.

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2023 20332
Rent receivable § 266Bas S 200,641
Grants receivable 25,000 1,596,397
GET recehable 116,765 264,403
Management fee receivable 2,728 3912
Other receivables 153,159 .

$ 564493 § 2100553
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

5. RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS

Maturity 2023 Yield 2022
Short-term
Term deposits <1 year 3.85% - 4.75% 2,060
Long-term
Term deposit 2 years $ 1499497 1.05% 5 -

6.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2023 2022

Accounts payable $§ B96130 5 1619439
Wages payable 42,005 43,366
Accrued holiday pay 43,745 56,232
Holdbacks payable = 315151

$ SBIBBO  $ 2034188

7. REPLACEMENT RESERVE
The CMHC Replacement Reserve account consists of

Core SHC LA

6 units 17 units: 30 units Total
Balance, December 31, 2022 £ 13386068 $ 1067144 S . $ 14453212
CMHC subsidy allocation - - . -
Transter from surplus - - - -
Intenest eamed 335,410 29,253 - 365,663
Less: Approved expenditures from
resenve (409.160) {20,015) = [429.175)
Balance, Decembar 31, 2023 $ 13313318 $§ 1076382 $ - $ 14389700

The Market Replacement Reserve account consists of

Total
Balance, December 31, 2022 £ 1033988
Allocation of funds 279,160
Interest eamed 2,704
Less: Approved expenditures from resene (434, 281)
Balance, December 31, 2023 BB1LSH
Total scement Reserve, December 31, 2023 5 tﬁm

2]
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
MHotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

8. LONG-TERM DEBT

2022

CMHC mortgage repayable in blended monthly payments of

$4.951 including interest at 1.89%. The mortgage matures on

Movember 1, 2025, $ mezs 5 168,744
CMHC morigage repayable in blended monthly payments of

$£3.81 including interest at 1.22%. The morgage matures on

February 1, 2027. 142,151 185,912
CMHC mortgage repayable in blended monthly payments of

£1,959 including interest at 1.22%. The morigage matures on

Movember 1, 2027. 89,968 12,259
CMHC mortgage repayable in blended monthly payments of

$378 including interest at 1.22%. The mortgage matures on

February 1, 2028. 18,456 22,748
CMHC morgage repayable in blended monthly payments of

$1,839 induding interest at 1.89%. The mortgage matures on

June 1, 2029, 15,374 135,099
First MNations Bank loan repayable im blended monthly

payments of $2961 including interest at 4.93%. The loan

matured on October 18, 2023 and is in the renewal process.

The loan i secured by land and buildings with a net book

value of $2,065,062 (2022 - $2,091,794). 317941 337,278
First MNations Bank loan repayable im blended monthly

payments of $1146 including interest at 4.93%. The loan

matures on January 1, 2024. The loan is secured by land and

buildings with a net book value of $2,065062 (2022 -

$2,091,734). 124,81 132,266
First MNations Bank loan repayable in blended

payments of $939 including interest at prime plus LB0%. The

loan matures on October 4, 2025, The loan is secured by land

and buildings with a net book wvalue of $1.341819 (2022 -

$1.345267). 88,365 91,813
First Mations Bank loan repayable in blended monthly

payments of $13.,006 including interest at 4.78%. The loan

matures on July 10, 2025. The loan is secured by land and

buildings with a net book value of $2.772,759 (2022 -

$2.894,974). &41,638 763853
First Mations Bank loan repayable in blended monthly

payments of $2,588 including interest at 4.78%. The loan

matures on August 1, 2025, The loan is secured by land and

bulldings with a net book wvalue of $2091043 (2022

$2.108.392). 2771273 294,622
First Nations Bank loan repayable in blended monthly

payments of $889 including interest at 4.94% The loan

matures on March 1, 2027. The loan is secured by land and

buildings with a net book value of $498.479 (2022 - $503,846). 102,865 108,231
First MNations Bank loan repayable in blended

payments of $495 including interest at 4.30%. The loan

matures on April 1, 2026. The loan i secured by land and

buildings with a net book value of $823,056 (2022 - $831.796). 63,189 66,336

{continues)
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

8. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

2023 2022
First Watlons Bank Iloan repayable in blended monthly
payments of 2B79 including interest at 4.30%. The |oan
matures on April 1, 2026. The loan is secured by land and
buildings with a net book value of 3,066 (2022 - $831,796). 112,307 17,901
2,206,323 2537062
Amounts payable within one year {455,544) (648, 443)
$ 1750779 $ 1BBBE19

The estimated princlpal repayments due in each of the next five years are as follows:

2024 $ 455544
2025 1320447
2026 257,108
2027 139,722
2028 22,359
Theraafter mniaz

2206323

8. CREDIT FACILITY

The Organization has credit facilities with First Mations Bank of Canada, which includes two approved
operating lines that can be drawn upon to a maximum of $600,000, each bearing interest at prime
plus 1.00% and are secured by a general security agreement. At the statement of financial position
date, the amount owing, which is due on demand, was $249,277 (2022 - $NIL).

10. CONTIMGENT LIABILITY

The Organization receives project financing from Seskatchewsn Housing Corporation (SHC) to
develop, construct, or improve affordable remtal housing for low to moderate income households. The
project financing s in the form of a forgivable loan that is forgiven in an amount annually over a period
of years if the Organization adheres to the SHC's operating agreement.

The project financing is recorded by the Organization as a capital grant and credited to Invested in
Capital Assets, resulting in a contingent llability. If the Organization does not adhere to the operating
agreements the non-forgivable portion of the grant is refundabla,

Forgivable Funds Advanced:
Balance,
Total December 31,
Date advanced Furghrﬂn 2023
20M £ 164008 $ 725,614 £ 915,392
202 2,592,000 110,000 882,000
202 264,000 243,833 20,167
20M3 408,000 342,833 65,167
2013 552,000 392,534 159,466
2023 486,000 24,300 461,700
$ 5943006 5 3439114 $ 2503892
11
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
MHotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Organization has entered into 8 commitment under a leases for a warehouse facility, These lease
agreement expires on July 31, 2031, Future minimum lease payments as at December 31, 2023 are as

follows:

Contractual obligation repayment schedule:
2024 1 250
2025 H,250
2026 14,563
2027 15,000
2028 15,000
Thereafter 38,750

$____1msi3

12. FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Organization, as part of its operations, camies a number of financial instruments. it is
management’s opinion that the Organization is not exposed to significant risks arising from these
financial instruments except as otherwise disclosed.

Credit risk

I:mditriskarimsﬁmmepomnﬂulmmnmunmrpnny\ﬂllfalltnperfmmmmmm The
Organization s exposed to credit risk from potential non-payment of accounts receivable,
specifically its rent receivable. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established based upon
factors surmounding the credit risk of specific accounts, historical trends and other information. The
Organization has a significant number of tenants which minimizes concentration of credit risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a
change in the interest rates. Changes in market interest rates may have an effect on the cash flows
associated with some financial assets and liabilities, known as cash flow risk, and on the fair value of
aother financial assets or liabilities, known as price risk. The Onganization & exposed to interest rate
risk on its investments and long-term debt.

12
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Surpluses (Deficit) [Schedule 1)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Surplus
Beginning of [Deficit) for Transfor to
year the year Resene End of year
CMHC -] 5367 § 9266 § = 5 146,295
Market Phases
5 Hopkins 186,632 25,126 . 21,768
6  AvenueY (53.820) {90.,135) - (143,955)
7 Hopkins 193,078 27696 . 220,774
8  Activity Centre (87.531) (¥6.120) - (103,651)
9 AvenueP - - - -
10  Awvenue V 1,085 (19,493) - (8,408)
1 Houses 1,609,433 17,613 - 1,627,046
12  15th Street (203,316) (104, Fad) = (308.060)
12 AvenveH (56,222) (103.,512) = (158,734)
14 Tth Street 96,376 (30,955) - 65421
15 22nd Street (743.028) (273.448) - (1,016,476)
16 Lindsay (54.416) (39,518) - (93,934)
17 Packham - - - -
18 Argyle (22.491) (2,204) - (24.695)
19 STC 149,020 77402 - 226,422
20 O'Neal (12,364) (8,091 - (20.455])
21 Cartier (34,066) 6328 - (27,738)
22 Blaine Lake 109,510 (7.547) - 101,963
23 Avenue W 2751 (122.672) - (95,301)
24 15 Columbian (135,009) 59,290 - (75.619)
25 Kotawan = = = =
$ 1034121 2 ___§ 521853
See notes to the financial statements
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Investment in Capial Assets (Schedule 3)
For the Year Ended Decembar 31, 2023

Beginning of
year Capital grant Transfar End of yaar

CMHC -] - 5 . 5 . s =
Market phases
5 Hopkins 681,000 - - 681,000
6 AvenueY 1237977 - . 1,237,817
7 Hopkins 779602 . . 719,602
8  Activity 272,793 . . 272,793
9  AvenueP - - - -
10 Avenue vV 918,518 - - 8,518
1 Houses 691,932 - - £91,932
12  19th Street 1,633,003 - - 1,633,003
12 AvenuveH 2,964 481 = . 2,964,481
14 Tth Street 1,348,240 - - 1348240
15 22nd Street 1.274 386 - - 1,274 386
16 Lindsay 1,366,349 . . 1,366,349
18 Angyle 236,796 - - 236,796
20 O'Meal 57931 = - 57931
24 Columbian 4129565 127 888 - 4,257 453

$ 1813903 $ 127888 § - $ 18241701

Soe notes to the financial statements
16
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 5 (Schadule 5)
For the Year Ended Decembar 31, 2023

2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue % 98,552 % 88,960
Laundry revenug 181 2,120
Administrative recovery - -
Bad debt recovery -
Other - -
98,733 9,080
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General 478 788
Bad debis 841 -
Bank charges - -
Insurance 4316 4182
Janitorial 1302 37
Miscellaneous - -
Mortgage intenest = =
Professional fees = -
Property taxes 9333 9,508
Repairs and maintenance 15,187 16,408
Replacement Reserve allocation 10,800 10,800
Security - -
Site management 3,74 3,000
Utilities 27,538 2421
73,606 69,274
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPEMSES 5 25127 S 21,806
See notes to the financial statements
18
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 6 (Schedula 8)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 1 a38 % o7 809
Laundry revenue - -
Administrative recovery -
Other -
93,801 97,809
EXPENSES
Administration - General 922 1653
Amortization - -
Bad debts 10,285 -
Bank charges 243 20
Insurance 12,868 6,828
Janitorial 1310 185
Miscellaneous - -
Morigage interest -
Professional fees = -
Property taxes 34,505 33536
Repairs and maintenance 76,249 70139
Replacement Reserve allocation 14,400 14,400
Security - -
Site management 1,200 4,800
Uilities 31,954 30,313
183,936 162,065
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 5 (90,135) $ [64.2586]
See notes 1o the financial statements
19
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 7 [Schedule 7)
For the Year Ended Decembar 31, 2023
202 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue % 96,604 & 84,689
Capital project revenue 19,518 14,309
Grant funding & -
Laundry revenue 1,240 500
Administrative recovery - -
Other - .
27362 99 498
EXPENSES
Administration - General 202 93
Amaortization - -
Bad debts 2,894 1887
Bank charges = .
Insurance 3,105 3,996
Janitorial 2,158 a4
Miscellaneous = -
Mortgage intenest = -
Professional fees - -
Property taxes 8,333 9508
Repairs and maintenance 126,629 15,12
Replacement Reserve allocation 10,800 10,800
Security - .
Site management 3,957 3.000
Utilities 30,588 26,629
189,666 72284
OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ 27696 3 27.214
See notes to the financial statements
20
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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Statement of Operations - Activity Centre - Phase B (Schedule 8)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 37T 5 27793
Laundry revenue - -
Administrative recovery -
Other -
37,773 27,793
EXPENSES
Administration - General 78 594
Amortization - -
Bad debts - -
Bank charges 24 L
Insurance 4352 2,130
Janitorial 16,142 -
Miscellaneous -
Morigage interest -
Professional fees = -
Property taxes 13,434 13,057
Repairs and maintenance 8,385 36N
Replacement Reserve allocation 3,200 3,200
Security - 2,441
Site management 1428 200
Telephone 3,689 -
Uilities 7,021 FALY
53,893 32441
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (16;120) % (4.648)
See notes 1o the financial statements
A
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 9 (Schadule 9)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 93598 § 78,934
Capital project revenua 87,530 12470
Grant funding - -
Laundry revenue 709 183
Administrative recovery - -
Other 22M -
184 108 91,587
EXPENSES
Administration - General 1422 802
Amaortization - -
Bad debts 14,300 1,240
Bank charges & &8
Insurance 8,858 6,769
Janitorial 9,670 -
Miscellaneous = -
Mortgage intenest = -
Professional fees - -
Property taxes - =
Repairs and maintenance 108,700 39375
Replacement Reserve allocation 13,500 13,500
Security . 9,585
Site management 7,600 6.000
Utilities 28,615 3175
192,671 108,514
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (8,563) (16,927
OWNER'S ALLOCATION OF DEFICIENCY (B8,563) (16.927)

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

Soe notes to the financial statements

133

22

2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT



CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 10 (Schedule 10)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 75989 § 59,003
Capital project revenua 37,365 28,805
Grant funding = -
Laundry revenue 658 72
Administrative recovery - -
Other 158 -
14470 87970
EXPENSES
Administration - General 693 705
nm‘ m‘l‘ - -
Bad debts 5,053 705
Bank charges = .
Insurance 5,141 6.037
Janitorial 4,059 .
Miscellaneous = -
Mortgage intenest = -
Professional fees - -
Property taxes 8,274 8,290
Repairs and maintenance 63,232 46,081
Replacement Reserve allocation 10,800 10,800
Security - .
Site management 3.000 2.600
Utilities 3341 33488
133,663 109,706
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (19493) 3 [21.736]

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

Soe notes to the financial statements
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 11 (Schedule 1)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

L¥}
LY
¥}

REVENUE
Romtal revenue $ 647792 % 583,797
Laundry revenue . .
Administrative recovery 12,751 19,808
Other 5387 1,192
665,330 704,797
Administration - General 3,450 62,041
Administration - Salaries, benefits and travel 69,199 44,090
Bad debis 13,538 19,258
Bank charges 1,283 78
Commitiee meetings - B24
Insurance 45,567 38,460
Janitorial 5,055 255
Miscellaneous = -
Mortgage intenest = -
Professional fees - -
Property taxes 135,879 122,064
Repairs and maintenance 147,040 179,795
Replacement Reserve allocation 100,000 100,000
Security - .
Site management - -
Telephone 374 240
Tenant counseling 101,092 30,038
Utilities 25230 20917
647,117 628,160
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPEMNSES $ 17613 S 76,637

Soe notes to the financial statements
24
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 12 (Schedule 12)
For the Year Ended Decembar 31, 2023
2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue T35 % 82,659
Laundry revenue . .
Administrative recovery - -
Other -
72,215 82,659
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General 170 Te8
Amortization 26,73 25,449
Bad debts 12,641 1.741
Bank charges - -
Condominium fees AT A03 38,625
Insurance - -
Janitorial 1,820 180
Miscellaneous = =
Mortgage intenest 22 550 23,832
Professional fees = -
Property taxes 25220 24 512
Repairs and maintenance 22,664 21,310
Replacement Reserve allocation 12,900 12,100
Security - -
Site management - a0
Utilities 5,960 5,634
176,959 154,261
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (104744) 5 [71.603]

Soe notes to the financial statements

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Soe notes to the financial statements
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Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 13 (Schedule 13)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 86,266 & 78,14
Laundry revenue . .
Administrative recovery -
Bad debt recovery -
Other 12,808 -
99,074 78,714
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General 5,336 754
Bad debis 8,959 2,954
Bank charges - :
Insurance 12,256 6.275
Janitorial 640 .
Miscellaneous -
Mortgage intenest = -
Professional fees - -
Property taxes 15,901 15379
Repairs and maintenance 57,239 43,980
Replacement Reserve allocation 29160 29,160
Security 6,583 3,899
Site management 7,200 5,340
Telephone - -
Utilities 59,312 49408
202,586 157147
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (103512) 5 (78433

6
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 14 (Schedule 14)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 5 82,734 % B4.451
Laundry revenue 48 196
Administrative recovery - -
__Other -
82,782 B84 647
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General 218 &M
Amortization 7.570 5.954
Bad debts 5,278 -
Bank charges - -
Insurance 4,661 3ere
Janitorial 1027
Miscellaneous - .
Morigage intenest 3,700 5317
Professional fees = -
Property taxes 8985 888
Repairs and maintenance 15,630 12,773
Replacement Reserve allocation 13,600 13,600
Site management 7,200 1,200
Liilities 45,868 30.828
113,737 82,859
[DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 5 (30,955) S 1,788

Soe notes to the financial statements
27
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 15 (Schedule 15)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
REVENUE
Romtal revenue $ 2070w % 251126
Grant funding - 49534
Laundry revenue s46 599
Administrative recovery - -
Other 1,000 3,094
208,562 304353
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General 485 6,765
Administration - Salaries, benefits and travel - -
Amaortization 122201 116,522
Bad debts 27123 13.053
Bank charges - -
Insurance 27125 16,734
Janitorial 6,673 105
Miscellaneous = =
Mortgage intenest 33858 39566
Professional fees - -
Property taxes 27,283 27,545
Repairs and maintenance 89,425 90,742
Replacement Reserve allocation 29,400 29400
Security 30,846 20,354
Site management 10,729 9,600
Telephone - -
Tenant counselling - -
Utilities 76,852 72,718
482,010 443104
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ (273448) $ (138751

Soe notes to the financial statements
28
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 16 (Schedule 16)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 100,967 £ 93315
Laundry revenug 1,297 1,495
Administrative recovery - -
__Other 1,150
103,414 94 810
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General 502 &7
Amortization 17,348 16,540
Bad debts 8,906 -
Bank charges - -
Insurance 7,293 6.8M
Janitorial 885 360
Miscellaneous - .
Morigage intenest 13,706 14513
Professional fees = -
Property taxes 1,354 1,448
Repairs and maintenance 40377 21,081
Replacement Reserve allocation 14,400 W,400
Site management 3,000 3,000
Liilities 25,061 23,041
142,932 .91

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

Soe notes to the financial statements
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 17 {Schedule 17)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 272050 % 291,596
Laundry revenue . .
Management and maintenance fee - -
Administrative recovery - 17,400
Other 3,850 -
275,900 308,996
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General - 20,339
Bad debis - -
Bank charges - a
Insurance 8,487 4,599
Janitorial 7.799 8.857
Miscellaneous - .
Mortgage intenest = =
Professional fees 12,751 -
Property taxes 43328 47,761
Repairs and maintenance 22,942 18,785
Replacement Reserve allocation 8,000 8,000
Security 5,822 2,188
Site management - .
Utilities 36,184 32672
145,323 143201
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPEMSES 130,577 165,795
OWNER'S ALLOCATION OF EXCESS 130,577 165,795
OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES - 5 -

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL

Soe notes to the financial statements
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 18 (Schedule 18)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 20908 § 20400
Laundry revenue . .
Administrative recovery -
Other -
20,908 20,400
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General = 429
Amortization 5329 519
Bad debis - -
Bank charges - -
Insurance 2,296 1.442
Miscellaneous - .
Morigage interest 5,263 5473
Professional fees - .
Property taxes 3.8 3723
Repairs and maintenance 3,993 3538
Replacement Reserve allocation 2,400 2,400
Security = =
Site management - -
Utilities - 200
2312 22,324
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES [2.204) £ {1.924]
See notes to the financial statements
i
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 19 (Schedule 13)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 36,600 § 25,200
Laundry revenue . .
Administrative recovery - 2300
Management and maintenance fee 76,174 63,513
12,774 91,013
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General &5 38
Bad debis - =
Bank charges - -
Insurance - 1347
Janitorial s :
Miscellaneous -
Morigage interest -
Professional fees = -
Property taxes 4,838 4702
Repairs and maintenance 23 558 39141
Replacement Reserve allocation - -
Security - 305
Site management - -
Liilities 6,91 10,858
35372 56,61
OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 77402 S 34342
See notes to the financial statements
2
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

SASKATOON TRIBAL COUNCIL
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Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 20 (Schedule 20)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue aT4aT0 % 26,684
Laundry revenue . .
Administrative recovery -
Other -
37,470 26,684
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General = 23
Amortization 8,740 8373
Bad debts 840 1,916
Bank charges - -
Insurance 535 2474
Janitorial BBS 300
Miscellaneous - .
Morigage intenest 7.751 g.ne
Professional fees = -
Property taxes 7322 w7
Repairs and maintenance 13,245 8,063
Replacement Reserve allocation 4,800 4,800
Site management - -
Liilities 1,383 2144
45,561 43,586
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (8091 S (16,902
See notes to the financial statements
e ic |
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 21 (Schedule 21)
For the Year Ended Decembar 31, 2023

2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue $ 16,850 % 2,200
Laundry revenue - .
Administrative recovery .
__Other -
16,850 2200
EXPENSES
Administration - General 687 415
Bad debis - =
Bank charges - -
Insurance - 635
Janitorial 255 270
Miscellaneous -
Morigage interest -
Professional fees = -
Property taxes 26176 2542
Repairs and maintenance 1,992 20m
Replacement Reserve allocation 1,800 1,800
Site management - -
Utilities 3,172 19494
10,522 9.667
[DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 5 6328 S (7,467

Soe notes to the financial statements
34
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 22 (Schedule 22)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2023

L¥}
LY
¥}

Rental revenue
Laundry revenue
Administrative recovery

Property taxes

Repairs and maintenance
Replacement Reserve allocation

Site management
Liilities

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

Soe notes to the financial statements
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION
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Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 23 (Schedule 23)
For the Year Ended Decembar 31, 2023
2023 2022
REVENUE
Rental revenue 32492 % 161,670
Grant funding - .
Laundry revenue .
Administrative recovery 100,000
Other 686
133,178 161670
EXPEMNSES
Administration - General ars 7559
Bad debis 7170 2,9
Bank charges - i
Insurance 2,057 1784
Janitorial 7.776 375
Miscellaneous -
Mortgage intenest =
Professional fees = -
Property taxes - -
Rent 36,630 39,990
Repairs and maintenance 159,083 333
Replacement Reserve allocation - -
Security - =
Site management 4,550 3.250
Utilities 38,2090 35,273
255,850 130,799
E OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES (122672) 5 30.8M
See notes to the financial statements
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - Phase 24

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

(Schedule 24)

L¥}
LY
¥}

REVENUE

Rental revenue
Laundry revenue
Administrative recovery

Property taxes

Repairs and maintenance
Replacement Reserve allocation
Security

Telephone

Utilities

BRI

1,685
13,023

:

7456

132,720

(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

$__ (132720]

Soe notes to the financial statements
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Linits - Phase 25 (Schedule 25)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
2023 2022
REVEMUE
Rental revenue 200140 % -
Laundry revenues - -
Administrative recovery - -
Other - -
200,140
EXPENSES
Administration - General 100 -
Amortization -
Bad debts 10,331 -
Bank charges N -
Insurance - -
Janitorial 1,400 -
Miscellaneous - -
Mortgage interest 2 -
Professional fees - -
Property taxes -
Repairs and maintenance 12,777 -
Rent 24354 -
Security 2 -
Site management - -
Tenant counselling 324 -
Litilities 35,341 -
85,050
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 1,080
OWNER'S ALLOCATION OF EXCESS 111,090
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES - -]
The Organization does not have title to the bank accounts of Phase 25,
See notes to the financial statements =
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CRESS HOUSING CORPORATION

Statement of Operations - Market Units - All (Schedule 26)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
2022
REVEMLUE
Rental revenue $ 2440207 % 2126883
Grant funding - 49,534
Capital project revenue 244,413 55,584
Laundry revenue 4,827 5,965
Administrative recovery 12,751 139,508
Bad debl recovary - 3,004
Management and maintenance fee 76,174 63513
Other 27,308 1,152
2,905,681 2444 473
EXPENSES
Administration - General 15,532 227,248
Administration - Salaries, benefits and trawveal 65,200 44,090
Amaortization 183,851 177,956
Bad debts 128,374 51,945
Bank charges 1,989 827
Committee meetings - B23
Condo fees 47,103 38,625
Insurance 153,440 14,243
Janitorial 73,233 1,636
Mortgage interest 90,506 95,820
Professional fees 12,751 12,025
Property taxes 361,438 358,510
Rent 60,984 27,780
Repairs and maintenance 1,018,458 665,338
Replacement Reserve allocation 279,160 279,160
Security 45,147 38,772
Site managemenit 53,578 43,080
Telephone 17,086 240
Tenant counselling 101,417 30,038
Liilities 553,814 440,065
3,277,461 2,660,221
DEFICIENCY OF REVEMUE OVER EXPEMNSES (371, 780) (215,748)
OWNER'S ALLOCATION OF EXCESS 233,104 148,867
NET DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ (s04884) S (364,615}
See notes to the financial statements 39
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Saskatoon Tribal Council
Suite 200 - 335 Packham Avenue, Saskatoon, SK S7N 451
Tel: 306.956.6100 Fax: 306.244.7273
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